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Before the
FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20554

In the Matter of the Application of

International Private Satellite Partners, L.P.
d/b/a Orion Atlantic, L.P. File No.
For Authority to Launch and Operate

a Separate International Communications
Satellite System at 37.5 Degrees West Longitude

APPLICATION

International Private Satellite Partners, L.P., doing business as Orion Atlantic, L.P.
(“Orion Atlantic”),¥ pursuant to Sections 308, 309 and 319 of the Communications Act of 1934,
as amended ("Communications Act") and Section 25.114 of the Commission's rules, hereby
applies for authority to launch and operate on a non-common carrier basis a hybrid Ku-Band/C-
Band separate international communications satellite space station at 37.5 degrees West
Longitude (W.L.), thereby expanding its current authority to operate its F-1 Ku-Band satellite at
375 degrees W.L. by adding C-Band frequencies at this location. Loral Orion Network Systems,
Inc. ("Loral Orion") previously supplied information to the Commission in support of U.S. C-
Band filings at 37.5 degrees W.L. which the Commission forwarded to the ITU. The 37.5 degree

W.L. location is currently an unassigned orbital location in the C-Band within the U.S.#

3 Orion Atlantic, L P, with headquarters in Rockville, Maryland, is controlled by its general
partner, Orion Network Services, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Loral Orion Network
Systems, Inc. (collectively "Loral Orion").

2/ On March 6, 1998, the Chief of the FCC's Satellite Radiocommunication Division,
pursuant to delegated authority, granted Special Temporary Authority to Columbia
(continued...)
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BACKGROUND

Orion Atlantic holds a Commission license to launch and operate a separate international
satellite system consisting of two Atlantic Ocean Region ("AOR") satellites, located at 37.5°
W.L. (Ku-Band), and 47° W.L. (hybrid Ku/Ka-Band).? The Loral Orion F-1 satellite currently
occupies the 37.5° W.L. orbital location and provides the full array of commercial Ku-Band
international services between Europe and North America. As described below, Orion Atlantic
seeks authority to launch and operate a hybrid C-Band/Ku-Band satellite at this location to make
optimal and efficient use of the orbital resource. The addition of C band services at 37.5° W.L.
would satisfy significant unfilled customers demand for C band connectivity between Latin

America, the U.S ., and Europe.

DETAILED INFORMATION IN SUPPORT OF THE APPLICATION
The following information is provided in accordance with the correspondingly-numbered
subsections of Section 25.114(c) of the Commission's rules. An Index of the supporting Exhibits

referenced herein is attached beneath this narrative portion of the application.

2/(...continued)
Communications Corporation to operate on C-Band frequencies from the 37.7° W.L. orbital
location until further order of the Commission, but not beyond September 4, 1998.

3/ See Memorandum Opinion, Order, Authorization, 5 FCC Red 4937 (Aug. 6, 1990);
Memorandum Opinion, Order, and Authorization 6 FCC Red 4201 (June 28, 1991); and
Memorandum Opinion and Order, 9 FCC Red 2148 (May 11, 1994). Also, Loral Orion holds a
Ku-Band space station authorization at 12° W.L. (File No. 204-SAT-ML-95). Orion Network
Systems, Inc. holds conditional authorization to construct, launch, and operate a Ku-Band space
station at 135° W.L. In addition, Orion Network Systems - Asia Pacific, Inc. a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Orion Network Systems, Inc. is an applicant for a hybrid C-/Ku-Band satellite space
station at 126° E.L. (File No. CSS-94-009).
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(D NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF APPLICANT

Orion Atlantic L.P.

2440 Research Blvd., Suite 400
Rockville, MD 20850
301-258-3200

2) NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF COUNSEL

Thomas J. Keller, Esq.

Julian L. Shepard, Esq.

Verner, Liipfert, Bernhard, McPherson and Hand
901 15th Street, N'W.

Washington, D.C. 20005

Telephone:  (202) 371-6060

Fax: (202) 371-6279

3) TYPE OF AUTHORIZATION REQUESTED

Orion Atlantic, L P. is requesting authorization from the Federal Communications
Commission to launch and operate a separate international fixed communications satellite system

in geostationary orbit.

4) GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF OVERALL SYSTEM,
FACILITIES, OPERATIONS AND SERVICES

Orion Atlantic, L.P. proposes to launch and operate a hybrid Ku-Band/C-Band satellite
system for service in the Atlantic Ocean Region. The C-Band payload will build upon and expand
Orion Atlantic's existing Ku-Band services at 37.5° W.L. which include high efficiency
transmission for comprehensive satellite services supporting voice, video, and data, as well as next
generation satellite news gathering terminals and full connectivity VSAT networks. The C-Band

payload will support satellite transmissions for trans-Atlantic services and for intra-regional
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services within North America, Europe, South America and Africa using two hemispherical
coverage beams. Data rates up to 45 Mbits per transponder will be supported. Fully flexible
switching onboard the satellite will provide interconnectivity for any transponder to be connected

from any uplink beam to any downlink beam by ground telecommand.

&) TECHNICAL DESCRIPTION OF RADIO FREQUENCIES AND
POLARIZATION PLAN

Detailed descriptions of the radio frequencies; polarization plan (including beacon,
telemetry and telecommand functions); center frequency and polarization of transponders (both
receiving and transmitting frequencies); emission designators and allocated bandwidth of
emission; final amplifier output power; identification of antenna béams that are connected or
switchable to each transponder and TT&C function; receiving system noise temperature; the
relationship between satellite receive antenna gain pattern and gain-to-temperature ratio and
saturation flux density for each antenna beam; the gain of each transponder channel including any
adjustable gain step capabilities; predicted receiver and transmitter channel filter response
characteristics; and other the technical facilities are set forth in the attached Technical Exhibit
(Exhibit 1) entitled "Technical Description of C/Ku-Band Satellite for 37.5 W.L. Orbital

Position.”

(6) INFORMATION REGARDING ORBITAL LOCATION

The requested orbital location is 37.5° W.L., a location which is currently assigned to

Orion Atlantic for operation of a Ku-Band separate international satellite space station. Upon
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grant of this application, Orion Atlantic would seek authority to relocate its existing Ku-band

satellite currently operating at é 7§°WL to 1ts otherauthonzed Ku-band orbital assignment at
47° W.L. This efficient deployment plan would expand Loral Orion’s coverage of CONUS and
certain parts of Latin America and makes optimal use of Loral Orion’s orbital and frequency
resources.

Further, the deployment schedule for launch of Orion Atlantic’s proposed hybrid satellite
at 37.5° W.L. takes into account the Commission’s recent grant of special temporary authority
for operation of the INTELSAT 515 space station at 37.7° W.L. for a period of 180 days.¥ The
INTELSAT 515 satellite is an early generation INTELSAT satellite with a relatively short
remaining useful life. Orion Atlantic proposes to launch the proposed hybrid C/Ku band satellite
to the 37.5° W.L. location in December 2002, which is beyond the expected end of the useful life
of the 515 satellite. Thus, the deployment plan described herein is consistent with the United
States coordination effort on behalf of Columbia Communications while also maintaining
maximum use of Atlantic Ocean Region orbital resources by an existing licensee. Although an
earlier operational date would have been preferable, Orion Atlantic seeks to accommodate the
various interests of all parties allowing for temporary operation of the 515 satellite. During this

period of time, Columbia Communications has ample opportunity to successtully relocate to

another orbital position, if extended operation of the 515 proves technically feasible.

4/ On March 6, 1998 the Commission granted Columbia Communications Corporation
special temporary authority to operate the INTELSAT 515 satellite C band services at 37.7°
W.L. as part of a coordination agreement between INTELSAT and Columbia.
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(N SPACE STATION ANTENNA GAIN CONTOURS

Information regarding the antenna gain contours is set forth in Exhibit 1.

(8) DESCRIPTION OF THE TYPES OF SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED,
INTERFERENCE ANALYSIS AND ARFAS TO BE SERVED

L. Services to be provided: A full range of video, voice and data services are

anticipated, including but not limited to the following digital transmission services:

High efficiency transmission for comprehensive satellite services supporting voice, video,
and data, news gathering terminals and full connectivity VSAT networks.

Information regarding the estimated number and geographic distribution of earth stations
is set forth in Exhibit 1.

2. Interference analysis: Information regarding the interference analysis is set forth in

Exhibit 1.

) INFORMATION REGARDING THE ACCURACY OF THE ORBITAL
INCLINATION, ANTENNA AXIS ATTITUDE AND LONGITUDINAL DRIFT

Information on orbital inclination, antenna axis attitude and longitudinal drift is set forth in

Exhibit 1.

(10) INFORMATION REGARDING POWER FLUX DENSITY

Information on power flux density is set forth in Exhibit 1.

(11) ARRANGEMENT FOR TRACKING, TELEMETRY AND CONTROL

Information on tracking, telemetry and control is set forth in Exhibit 1.
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(12) PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS OF THE SPACE STATION
Information regarding the physical characteristics of the space station are set forth in

Exhibit 1

(13) FINANCIAL QUALIFICATIONS

The estimated costs to construct, launch and operate the space station for one year are
detailed in Exhibit 2. Orion Atlantic has access to sufficient financial resources, as reflected on

the balance sheets attached as Exhibits 3 and 4, to meet these costs.

(14) NON-COMMON CARRIER OPERATION

Orion will operate all transponders on the proposed space station on a non-common
carrier basis. The non-common carrier transactions will consist, typically. of private sales of

transponder capacity and related satellite communications services.

(15) CONSTRUCTION AND LAUNCH MILESTONES
Attached as Exhibit No. 5 is a schedule showing the dates by which construction will be
commenced and completed, the launch date, and the estimated date of placing the satellite into

service.

(16) PUBLIC INTEREST CONSIDERATIONS
Grant of Orion Atlantic's application is in the public interest for several reasons. First the

Commission's goals for separate satellite systems will be furthered by grant of the application.
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Grant of this application would permit Loral Orion, one of the first separate systems, to continue
to be responsive to the growing and changing needs of consumers. Recently, consumer demand
has grown exponentially both for Ku-Band and C-Band satellite communications services. Loral
Orion anticipates the need for additional Ku-Band capacity and C-Band capacity at this location
to meet the growing demand and provide a wide range of services to domestic consumers. Loral
Orion has consistently strived to meet customer demand in the design of the services now being
offered in the transatlantic market. The success and reliability of Loral Orion's existing
international system is well established. With the addition of C-Band frequencies, Loral Orion
will continue to build upon its successful track record in the provision of state-of-the-art
technology and services to users of satellite communications.

Second, the authorization of hybrid C/Ku-band service at 37.5° W.L. will make a
significant contribution to the further development of global information infrastructure and
significantly expands satellite coverage of Africa and Latin America. The proposed space station
will supplement the proposed coverage of the Orion-F2 hybrid Ka/Ku-Band satellite by providing
much needed C-Band coverage of Western Europe, Western Africa, Eastern United States, and
Eastern South America.

Third, the addition of C-Band frequencies would also satisfy the Commission's objective
of promoting maximum efficient use of orbital and spectrum resources. In 1990, Orion assisted
the U.S. in protecting U.S. interests for commercial operators in C-Band frequencies at 37.5 W.L.

by preparing for the FCC the AP3 materials. The U.S. subsequently submitted these materials to
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the ITU establishing U.S. priority access to C-Band at 37.5° W.L.¥ Loral Orion now seeks to

implement its previously-expressed interest in C-Band services at the 37.5° W.L. location.

ORION'S LEGAL QUALIFICATIONS

Orion Atlantic's legal qualifications are documented fully in the attached FCC Form 312

(Exhibit 6), which is incorporated herein by reference.

CONCLUSION

Orion Atlantic believes that it has fully complied with all pertinent Commission rules and
policies, and has provided the information required for the Commission to authorize the proposed
system. To the extent that the Commission views any portion of tﬁis application as not fully
compliant with current regulatory requirements, Orion Atlantic requests that the Commission
grant any additional waivers that may be necessary.

For the reasons described above, Orion Atlantic respectfully requests that the Commission
grant this application.

INTERNATIONAL PRIVATE

SATELLITE PARTNERS, L.P.
d/b/a ORION ATLANTIC, L.P.¢

5/ See Establishment of Satellite Systems Providing International Communications, 101
F.C.C. 2d 1046 (1985), 19 68-86.

6/ See Exhibit 6 (FCC Form 312) for signature of officer of applicant, waiver regarding use
of frequency, and certification.
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Exhibit 1
Technical Description

of C/Ku-Band satellite
for 37.5 WL

1. Introduction and Orbital Location

This document describes a new hybrid C and Ku-band satellite which will replace the
existing ORION-1 satellite at 37.5° West Longitude. The existing ORION-1 is an all Ku-
band satellite providing international communications services. This replacement satellite
will provide a high power, high capacity space segment with a total of 60 transponders in
C and Ku-bands and will enable additional services to be provided throughout the
Atlantic Ocean Region.

The C-band payload provides 28 36-Mhz transponders to support various types of digital
and analog signal transmissions for trans-Atlantic and intra-regional services within N.
America, Europe, South America and Africa, using two hemispherical coverage beams.
Digital transmissions for data rates up to 45 Mbits per transponder will be supported.

The Ku-band payload provides 32 54-Mhz transponders with four broad coverage
regional beams to Europe, North America, South America and Africa.

In each frequency band, the communications traffic demand will be met with flexible
switching onboard the satellite, which will allow transponder interconnectivity from any

uplink beam to any downlink beam by ground command.

2. Satellite Coverages

The C-band receive (uplink) and transmit (downlink) beam coverages are provided with
two Hemispherical beams. The East Hemi coverage for Europe and Africa, and the West
Hemi coverage for North and South Americas.

The Ku-band receive and transmit beam coverages are provided with four broad regional
beams for Europe (EU), Africa (AF), North America (NA), and South America (SA).

3. Frequency and Polarization Plans

3.1 C-Band Plan
The frequency bands employed are 5.850-6.425 GHz for uplink and 3.625-4.200 GHz for

downlink. A 2-fold frequency reuse is achieved by means of orthogonal polarization
between the two Hemi beams for both uplink and downlink. Each Hemi-beam provides

Exhibit | - Page 1



14 transponders in one polarization, for a total of 28 transponders for the two Hemi

beams.

Table 1 shows the center frequency and polarization of the transponders. Each

transponder has 36 MH

center frequencies is 40 Mhz,

#9. The transponder numbers in T

Table 1. C-Band Transponder Frequency Plan

2 of usable bandwidth, and the spacing between the adjacent
except one 50 MHz spacing between Transponder #8 and
able 1 include designations for each beam (A or B).

Transponder Uplink Downlink
Number
Center Freq. Polarization Center Freq. Polarization
GHz GHz
1A 5.870 v 3.645 H
1B H \Y%
2A 5.910 v 3.685 H
2B H v
3A 5.950 A% 3.725 H
3B H ' v
4A 5.990 \Y% 3.765 H
4B H \Y
5A 6.030 v 3.805 H
5B H v
6A 6.070 v 3.845 H
6B H v
TA 6.110 v 3.885 H
7B H v
8A 6.150 v 3.925 H
8B H v
9A 6.200 v 3.975 H
9B H v
10A 6.240 v 4.015 H
10B H Vv
11A 6.280 v 4.055 H
11B H \Y
12A 6.320 v 4.095 H
12B H v
13A 6.360 v 4.135 H
13B H v
14A 6.400 v 4.175 H
14B H v
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The transponders #1 & #2 in the frequency range of 5.850-5.925 Ghz uplink and 3.600-
3 700 Ghz downlink will be used for international intercontinental communications,
subject to electromagnetic compatibility analysis in compliance with the US Table of
Frequency Allocations (refer to US footenote 245).

3.2 Ku-Band Plan

The Ku-band payload for the four regional beam coverages provides a total of 32
transponders: 16 transponders for the North and South Americas, and another 16
transponders for Europe and Africa.

The frequency band employed for the uplink is 14.0-14.5 Ghz in all regions. The
downlink frequency bands are: 1 1.7-12.2 GHz for the North and South Americas (ITU
Region 2), and 11.45-11.7 Ghz and 12.5-12.75 Ghz for the Europe and Africa (ITU
Region 1). The uplink frequency band employs a 4-fold frequency reuse by means of
orthogonal polarization and spatial isolation of the four beams. The downlink band in
each ITU Region employs a 2-fold frequency reuse by orthogonal polarizations.

The center frequency and polarization of the transponders assigned to the up and
downlinks are shown in Table 2A and 2B for the ITU Regions 1 and 2, respectively. Each
transponder has 54 MHz of usable bandwidth, and the spacing between the adjacent
center frequencies is 63 Mhz, except one 61 MHz spacing between Transponders #4 and
#5, for compatibility with the existing Orion-1 satellite. The transponder number includes
a designation for the downlink coverage beam (“Eu” for Europe, “Af” for Africa, “Na”
for North America and “Sa” for South America) and polarizations (A and B).

Table 2A. Ku-Band Transponder Frequency Plan for the Europe and Africa Beams
(ITU Region 1)

Transponder Uplink Downlink
Number
Center Freq. Polarization Center Freq. Polarization
GHz GH
1EuA 14.028 v 12.528 H
1EuB or 1AfB H v
2EuA 14.091 v 12.561 H
2FuB or 2AfB H \Y
3EuA 14.154 v 12.654 H
3FuB or 3A{B H \Y
4EuA 14.217 \Y 12.717 H
4FuB or 4 AfB H \Y
S5EuA 14.278 \Y 11.483 H
5AfB H v
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6EuA 14.341 \Y% 11.546 H
6AfB H \Y
TEUA 14.404 v 11.609 H
7AfB H \Y
SEuA 14.467 v 11.672 H
8AfB H V

Table 2B. Ku-Band Transponder Frequency Plan for the North America and South
America Beams (ITU Region 2)

Transponder Uplink Downlink
Number
Center Freq. Polarization Center Freq. Polarization
GHz GHz
INaA 14.028 v 11.728 H
1NaB or 1SaB H v
2NaA 14.091 v 11.791 H
2AmB or 2SaB H v
3NaA 14.154 \Y% 11.854 H
3AmB or 3SaB H v
4NaA 14.217 v 11917 H
4AmB or 45aB H v
5NaA 14.278 \% 11.978 H
5SaB H v
6NaA 14.341 v 12.041 H
6SaB H v
TNaA 14.404 \Y 12.104 H
7SaB H A%
8NaA 14.467 \Y% 12.167 H
8SaB H v

Global Telecommand will be at 14.499 Ghz to provide compatibility with the existing
Orion-1 TT&C networks. Telemetry and beacon carriers will be within the 11.450-11.451
GHz range for the purpose of payload status monitoring and earth station tracking
functions.
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4. Satellite Transmit Capability

4.1 C-Band Transmit

Figures 1A and 1B show the satellite transmit antenna gain contours of the East and West
Hemi beams for -2, -4, -6, -8, -10, -15 and -20 dB relative to the peak gain.

The C-band payload includes a total of 28 simultaneously operating traveling wave tube
amplifiers (TWTAs), each providing 55 Watts of saturated output power. The TWTAs
reside in four 10-for-7 redundancy ring configurations.

A summary of the C-band EIRP budget for each beam is shown in Table 3.

Table 3. C-band Payload Transmit Performance

(2). East Hemi Beam

Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Saturated TWTA output power 17.4dBW 17.4 dBW
Output circuit loss -1.2dB -1.2dB
Transmit antenna gain 29.2 dBi 23.2 dBi
EIRP 454 dBW 39.4dBW

(b). West Hemi Beam

Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Saturated TWTA output power 17.4dBW 17.4 dBW
Output circuit loss -1.2dB -1.2dB
Transmit antenna gain 28.3 dB1 28.3 dBi
EIRP 445 dBW 38.5dBW
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Figure 1A. Satellite Transmit Antenna Gain Contours
C-Band East Hemi-Beam (Peak Gain = 29.2 dBy)

37.5 Degree West Longitude
Contours for —2/-4/-8/—8/—1@/—15/—2@ dB from Peak Gain
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Figure 1B. Satellite Transmit Antenna Gain Contours
C-Band West Hemi-Beam (Peak Gain = 28.3 dBi)

37.5 Degree West Longitude
Contours for —2/—&/—8/—8/—1@/—15/—2@ dB from Peck Gain
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4.2 Ku-Band Transmit

The Ku-band satellite antenna gain contours are shown in Figures 2A-2D for the EU, AF,
NA and SA transmit beams. The peak gain and gain contours for -2, -4, -6, -8, -10, -15
and -20 dB relative to the peak gain are provided for each beam.

The Ku-band payload includes 32 simultaneously operating traveling wave tube
amplifiers (TWTAs), each for 100 Watts of saturated output power. The TWTAsS reside in

four 12-for-8 redundancy ring configurations.

The K-band EIRP budget for each beam is summarized in Table 4.

Table 4. Ku-band Payload Transmit Performance

(a). EU Beam
Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Saturated TWTA output power 20.0 dBW 20.0 dBW
| Output circuit loss -2.5dB -2.5dB
Transmit antenna gain 38.3 dBi 32.3dBi
EIRP 55.8 dBW 49.8 dBW
(b). AF Beam
Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Saturated TWTA output power 20.0 dBW 20.0 dBW
Output circuit loss -2.5dB -2.5dB
Transmit antenna gain 36.6 dBi 30.6 dBi
EIRP 54.1 dBW 48.1 dBW
(c). NA Beam
Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Saturated TWTA output power 20.0 dBW 20.0 dBW
Output circuit loss -2.5dB -2.5dB
Transmit antenna gain 37.4 dBi 31.4dBi
EIRP 54.9 dBW 48.9 dBW
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(d). SA Beam

Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Saturated TWTA output power 20.0dBW 20.0 dBW
Output circuit loss -2.5dB -2.5dB
Transmit antenna gain 35.8 dBi 29.8 dBi
EIRP 53.3dBW 47.3 dBW
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Theta 1n degrees

Figure 2A. Satellite Transmit Antenna Gain Contours
Ku-Band EU Beam (Peak Gain = 38.3 dBi)
Contours for -2, -4, -6, -8, -10, -15, and 220 dB from the Peak Gain

Yiew from 37.5 degree West Longitude

Theta in degrees

Exhibit 1 - Page 10

10



Figure 2B. Satellite Transmit Antenna Gain Contours
Ku-Band AF Beam (Peak Gain = 36.6 dBi)
Contours for -2, -4, -6, -8, -10, -15, and -20 dB from the Peak Gain

Uiew from 37.5 degree West Longitude
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Figure 2C. Satellite Transmit Antenna Gain Contours
K-Band NA Beam (Peak Gain = 37.4 dBi)
Contours for -2, -4, -6, -8, -10, -15, and 220 dB from the Peak Gain

View from 37.5 degree West Longitude
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Figure 2D. Satellite Transmit Antenna Gain Contours

Ku-Band SA Beam (Peak Gain = 35.8 dBi)
Contours for -2, -4, -6, -8, -10, -15, and -20 dB from the Peak Gain

View from 37.5 degree West Longitude
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5. Satellite Receive Capability

5.1 C-Band Receive

The peak gain and gain contours for -2, -4, -6, -8, -10, -15 and -20 dB relative to the peak
gain of the East and West Hemi beams are shown in Figures 3A and 3B.

The satellite receiving system noise temperature is approximately 600 K. Table 5 shows
the budget for the system gain to noise temperature ratio (G/T).

Table 5. Satellite Receive Performance

(a). East Hemi Beam

Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Receive antenna gain 28.7 dBi 22.7 dB1
System noise temperature 27.8 dBK 27.8 dBK
Receive G/T 0.9dB/K -5.1dB/K

(a). West Hemi Beam

Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Receive antenna gain 27.8 dBi 21.8 dBi
System noise temperature 27.8dBK 27.8dBK
Receive G/T 0 dB/K -6 dB/K
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Figure 3A. Satellite Receive Antenna Gain Contours

10

-10

C-Band East Hemi-Beam (Peak Gain = 28.7 dBi)

37.5 Degree West Longitude
Contours for -2/-4/-6/-8/-10/-15/~20 dB from Peak Gain
7 1 H 1 { T 1 ¥ H § H H ¥ H [ ¥ ] 1 I3

1 ) ] i i

-

10

5 — 5 10
Azimuth in degrees

Exhibit 1 - Page 15



Figure 3B. Satellite Receive Antenna Gain Contours
C-Band West Hemi-Beam (Peak Gain = 27.8 dBi)

37.5 Degree West Longitude
Contours for -2/-4/-6/-8/-1@/-15/-20 dB from Peak Gain
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5.2 Ku-Band Receive

Figures 4A-4D show the satellite antenna gain contours of the receive beams (EU, AF,
NA and SA) for -2, -4, -6, -8, -10, -15 and -20 dB relative to the peak gain.

The satellite receiving system noise temperature is approximately 600 K. The budget for
the system receive performance, gain to noise temperature ratio (G/T), is given in Table 6

for each beam.

Table 6. Satellite Receive Performance

(a). EU Beam
Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Receive antenna gain 37.8 dBi 31.8 dBi
System noise temperature 27.8dBK 27.8dBK
Receive G/T 10 dB/K 4 dB/K
(b). AF Beam
Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Receive antenna gain 36.1 dBi 30.1 dBi
System noise temperature 27.8 dBK 27.8 dBK
Receive G/T 83 dB/K 2.3 dB/K
(c). NA Beam
Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Receive antenna gain 36.9 dBi 30.9 dBi
System noise temperature 27.8 dBK 27.8 dBK
Receive G/T 9.1 dB/K 3.1dB/K

(d). SA Beam

Parameter Beam Peak -6 dB Contour
Receive antenna gain 35.3 dBi 29.3 dBi
System noise temperature 27.8 dBK 27.8 dBK
Receive G/T 7.5 dB/K 1.5 dB/K
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Figure 4A. Satellite Receive Antenna Gain Contours
Ku-Band EU Beam (Peak Gain =37.8 dBi)
Contours for -2, -4, -6, -8,-10, -15, and -20 dB from the Peak Gain

View from 37.5 degree West Longitude
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Figure 4B. Satellite Receive Antenna Gain Contours
Ku-Band AF Beam (Peak Gain = 36.1 dBi)
Contours for -2, -4, -6, -8, -10, -15, and -20 dB from the Peak Gain

View from 37.5 degree West Longitude
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Figure 4C. Satellite Receive Antenna Gain Contours
Ku-Band NA Beam (Peak Gain = 36.9 dBi)
Contours for -2, -4, -6, -8, -10, -15, and 220 dB from the Peak Gain

View from 37.5 degree West Longitude
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Figure 4D. Satellite Receive Antenna Gain Contours
Ku-Band SA Beam (Peak Gain = 35.3 dBi)

Contours for -2, -4, -6, -8, -10, -15, and 220 dB from the Peak Gain

View from 3735 degree West Longitude
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6. Connectivity

There will be flexible switching onboard the satellite to provide up/downlink
interconnectivity for trans-Atlantic and intra-regional communications services by ground
telecommand.

In C-band, the East Hemi beam will provide 6 transponders dedicated to intra-regional
services and 6 transponders switchable for trans-Atlantic services. Similarly, the West
Hemi beam will provide 6 transponders dedicated to intra-regional services and 6
transponders switchable for trans-Atlantic services. Transponders #1 and #2 in each beam
will have fixed connectivity for trans-Atlantic transmissions to comply with the US
regulatory provisions defined in the US Table of Frequency Allocations.

In Ku-band, 8 transponders will be dedicated to N. America downlinks, 4 transponders
dedicated to S. America downlinks, and 4 transponders switchable to North America or
South America downlinks. Also, 8 transponders will be dedicated to Europe downlinks, 4
transponders dedicated to Africa downlinks, and 4 transponders switchable to Europe or
Africa downlinks.

7. Transponder Gain Control and Saturation Flux Density

The gain of each transponder is independently controllable by ground command over a 20
dB range, in 1 dB gain steps.

The range of saturation flux density (SFD) related to the G/T value (dB/K) from any
location within the receive coverage areas is adjustable between the following maximum
and minimum values:

For C-band, -(77 + G/T) to -(97+G/T) dBW/m’

For Ku-band, -(74 + G/T) to -(94+G/T) dBW/m’

The corresponding gain of the transponder ranges from 115 dB to 135 dB in C-band, and
112 dB to 132 dB in Ku-band, depending on the gain setting.

8. Satellite Transponder Filter Response

The overall frequency response of a transponder is defined by the in-band and out-of-band
attenuation masks shown in Figures SA and 5B for C-band, and Figures 6A and 6B for Ku-
band. The in-band attenuation, relative to the peak in-band gain, does not exceed the limit
shown in Figures 5A and 6A. The out-of-band attenuation, relative to the peak in-band
gain exceeds the limit shown in Figures 5B and 6B. The actual transponder filter
characteristics will be finalized through detailed design optimizations.

Exhibit 1 - Page 22



Figure SA. In-Band Filter Response for C-Band Transponders
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Figure 6A. In-Band Filter Response for Ku-Band Transponders
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Figure 6B. Out-Of-Band Filter Response for Ku-Band Transponders
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9. Unwanted Emissions

The unwanted out-of-band emissions will not exceed the mean output power limitations
specified in the US Federal Regulations. Refer to CFR Section 25.202(D).

10. Emission Designators and Allocated Bandwidth of Emission

Table 7 shows a list of representative transmission types and their ITU emission
designators. The allocated bandwidth is identified conventionally in each emission

designator.

Table 7. Transmission Types and Emission Designators

Transmission Type Emission Designator
Digital TDMA (60 Mb/s QPSK, FEC rate 3/4) 50M4G1W
Digital MCPC (45 Mb/s QPSK, REC rate 3/4) 36MOG7TW
Digital MCPC (8.448 Mb/s QPSK, FEC rate 3/4) TM00G7W
Digital SCPC (1.544 Mb/s QPSK, FEC rate 3/4) IM30G1W
Digital SCPC (384 kb/s QPSK, FEC rate 172 500KG1W
Digital SCPC (64 kb/s QPSK, FEC rate 3/4) 56K0G1W
17.5 Mhz Analog TV with 2 Mhz EDS 17MSEF3F
30 Mhz Analog TV with 2.5 Mhz EDS 30MOF3F
Telecommand and Ranging 800KFXD
Beacon 40KONOX

The digital services include various types of multi-channel per carrier (MCPC) or single
channel per carrier (SCPC) transmissions for digital voice, data, and compressed digital
video for information rates from 64 kb/s up to 45 Mb/s in C-band and 60 Mb/s in Ku-
band. Forward error correction codes (FECs) with 3/4 and 1/2 rates and Reed-Solomon
concatenated outer codes will be used as applicable for the digital tramsmissions.

11. Earth Stations

A variety of earth stations ranging from 1.8 to 11 meters in diameter will operate using
the C-band satellite capacity to support various communication services. In Ku-band, a
number of VSAT networks with 1.2 to 2.4 m terminals on customer premises will be
operated along with larger earth stations. Smaller terminals down to 0.85 m will be used
for some Ku-band receive-only services.

At Ku-band, a small number of gateway earth stations (>3 meter) will be used primarily
to support the high speed (up to 60 Mb/s) digital transmissions. A large number of
smaller customer premises earth stations with 1.2-3.5 m aperture size will be used
primarily to provide lower rate digital services (64 kb/s to 2 Mb/s).
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The earth station networks will include various configurations of redundant transmission
components to meet high availability requirement. Also, all earth stations accessing the
satellite must adhere to Orion’s established operational procedures. The sidelobe
performance of all antennas larger than 1.8 m will meet the FCC requirements of 29-
25log(9) dBI, thus ensuring compatible operation with other adjacent satellite networks.
The smaller 0.85 m Ku-band receive-only antenna will meet 2 32-25log(0) dBi sidelobe
envelope. C-band antennas smaller than 1.8 m will meet 32-25log(6) dBi.

All transmissions will be monitored by Orion’s Communications Systems Monitor
(CSM) which determines the frequency and power level of each carrier to ensure that
they are within the authorized specifications. All operational procedures of the Orion
satellite network will be compliant with the Commission’s rules described in the CFR
Sections 25.271 through 25.277.

12. Communications Services and Link Budgets

A full range of communications services will be provided to meet the various existing
and new customers requirements. The range of services will include, but not limited to,
the following:

Digital single carrier and multi-carrier circuits ranging from 64 kb/s up to 60 Mb/s
SCPC/FDMA and TDMA access techniques

Star and meshed VSAT networks

Spread spectrum networks using CDMA if necessary

Digitally compressed video, ranging from 256 kb/s teleconferencing and 3 Mb/s
entertainment quality to 8-20 Mb/s broadcast quality

e Analog TV-FM transmissions for video distribution and broadcasting.

High quality digital transmissions with extremely low bit error rates (BER) of better than
1079 is achieved with the use of advanced FEC techniques, such as concatenated Reed-
Solomon (RS) outer coding with Viterbi inner codes. Orion offers overall link
availabilities of greater than 99.5 % for all services, VSAT networks included. Higher
link availabilities are provided to meet customers demand as required.

12.1 C-Band Link Budgets

The sample C-band link budgets in Figures 7A-7C show representative digital
transmissions between the earth stations located at the edge of coverage defined by -6 dB
from the beam peak. The link budget includes a rain loss of 2 dB each for uplink and

downlink fades, which provides high availability within the beam coverage regions.

Figure 7A shows a link budget for 64 Kb/s SCPC transmission. The transmission
employs QPSK modulation with FEC rate-3/4 RS for error correction. The link budget
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shows that the bandwidth-limited transponder loading of the 64 kb/s carriers is allowed
for the maximum capacity using the 2.4 m VSAT networks with 6-Watt HPAs.

Figure 7B shows a sample link budget for 1.544 Mb/s transmission between 3.5 m earth
stations located at the edge of satellite beam coverages. The transmission employs QPSK
modulation and FEC rate-3/4 RS. 20 W-class HPA is required for the earth station.

Figure 7C shows a sample Jink budget for a single 45 Mb/s carrier per transponder
transmission between 8 m earth stations using 30 Watts-class HPAs. The transmission
parameters assumed QPSK modulation with conventional FEC rate-3/4.

In addition, a sample link budget for a full transponder TV-FM broadcast services in C-
band from 10 m transmit to 7 m receive earth stations is shown in Figure 8. The overall
link budget shows a minimum carrier-to-effective total noise ratio of 18.3 dB which
provides video signal-to-noise ratio (/N ) of greater than 52.6 dB. The TV carrier was
assumed to be NTSC format with 4.2 Mhz video bandwidth, and modulated with peak
deviation of 9.4 Mhz. The weighting and emphasis factor provides 12.8 dB improvement.

12.2 Ku-Band Link Budgets

The sample link budgets for representative Ku-band digital carriers are shown in Figures
9A-9C. Figure 9A shows a link budget for 64 Kb/s SCPC transmission with QPSK
modulation and FEC rate-1/2 RS for error correction. The 64 kb/s transmissions between
1.8 m VSATSs equipped with 4 Watt HPAs allow the network to operate under
bandwidth-limited, maximum transponder capacity loading condition.

Figure 9B shows a link budget for 1.544 Mb/s transmission using 2.4 m VSAT terminals
located at the edge of satellite beam coverages. The carriers are QPSK-modulated with
FEC rate-3/4 RS for error correction.

Figure 9C shows a link budget for a single 60 Mb/s carrier per transponder transmission
between 5.5 m earth stations with 200 Watts-class HPAs. The link parameters are for
QPSK modulation with conventional FEC rate-3/4.

Figure 10 shows a link budget for half transponder 26 Mhz TV-FM in Ku-band from 5.5
m transmit to 3.5 m receive earth stations. The overall link budget shows a minimum
carrier-to-effective total noise ratio of 11.6 dB under uplink rain fade, which provides
video signal-to-noise ratio (S/N) of greater than 47.3 dB for NTSC.
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Figure 7A. C-Band Link Budget for 64 kb/s Transmission between 2.4 m Earth Stations

Link Analysis

System parameters: |Unit |Clear sky Uplink Fade Downlink Fade
Uplink frequency GHz 8.11 8.11 8.1
Data rate kbps 64.00 £54.00 64.00
Modutation QPSK QPSK QPSK
FEC Rate-3/4 RS Rate-3/4 RS Rate-3/4 RS
Occupied bandwidth kHz 55.81 55.81 55.81
Downlink frequency GHz 3.89 3.89 3.89
Required overall link Eb/No dB 6.00 8.00 8.00
Required overall link C/N dB 8.59 6.59 6.59
Earth terminal antenna m 2.40 2.40 2.40
Transponder bandwidth MHz 36.00 - 36.00 36.00
SFD dBW/sg(m) -83.00 -83.00 -83.00
Total PFD dBW/sg(m) -89.32 -81.32 -89.32
Uplink: | |Clear sky [uplink fade |Clear sky
Transmit power dBW 6.68 6.68 6.68
Transmit loss dB 1.50 1.50 1.50
Transmit antenna gain dBi 41.00 41.00 41.00
Uplink free space loss dB 200.10 200.10 200.10
Atmospheric loss dB 0.20 0.20 0.20
Rain loss dB 0.00 2.00 0.00
Satellite G/T dB/K -6.00 -6.00 -6.00
Bolizmann's constant dBWI/K/Hz -228.60 -228.60 -228.60
Noise bandwidth dBHz 47.47 47.47 47 47
Uplink thermal C/N dB 21.01 19.01 - 21.01
Cross-pol C/l dB 27.00 25.00 27.00
Copol C/ dB 27.00 25.00 27.00
Intersystem interference C/1 dB 15.79 13.79 15.79
Uplink total C/(N+1) dB 14.17 12.17 14.17
Downlink: | [Clear sky |Clear sky |Downlink fade
Transmit power at saturation daBW 17.40 17.40 17.40
Total output backoff dB 2.84 4.16 2.84
Transmit output loss dB 1.40 1.40 1.40
Transmit antenna gain dBi 23.20 23.20 23.20
Number of carriers dB 28.00 28.00 28.00
EIRP per carrier dBW 8.38 7.04 8.36
Downlink free space loss dB 196.860 196.60 198.60
Atmosperic loss dB 0.20 0.20 0.20
Rain degradation dB 0.00 0.00 2.00
Earth terminal G/T dB/K 18.90 18.80 18.90
Boltzmann's constant dBW/K/MHz 228.60 228.80 228.80
Downlink thermal C/N dB 11.59 10.27 9.59
intermodulation C/l dB 16.30 16.30 16.30
Cross-pol C/t dB 27.00 25.68 27.00
Copol Ch dB 27.00 25.68 27.00
Intersystemn interference C/1 dB 15.79 14.48 16.79
Downlink total C/{N+i) dB 9.10 8.00 7.86
Total link C/(N+I) dB 7.92 6.59 6.95
Total link Eb/(No+i0) ds 7.33 6.00 6.35
Margin dB 1.33 0.00 0.35
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Figure 7B. C-Band Link Budget for 1544 kb/s Transmission between 3.5 m Earth

Stations
Link Analysis
System parameters: ]Unit {Clear sky Uplink Fade Downlink Fade
Uplink frequency GHz 6.1 6.1 6.11
Data rate kbps 1,544.00 1,544.00 1,544 00
Modulation QPSK QPSK QPSK
FEC Rate-3/4 RS Rate-3/4 RS Rate-3/4 RS
Occupied bandwidth kHz 1,321.66 1,321.66 1,321.66
Downlink frequency GHz 3.89 3.89 3.89
Required overall link Eb/No dB 6.00 6.00 6.00
Required overall link C/N dB £.68 6.68 6.68
Earth terminal antenna m 3.50 3.50 3.50
Transponder bandwidth MHz 36.00 36.00 36.00
SFD dBWisqg(m) -86.00 -86.00 -86.00
Total PFD dBWIisqg{m) -92.89 -94.89 -92.89
Uplink: [ {Clear sky |Uplink fade |Clear sky
Transmit power dBW 12.91 12.91 12.81
Transmit loss dB 1.50 1.50 1.50
Transmit antenna gain dBi 4420 4420 4420
Uplink free space loss dB 200.10 200.10 200.10
Atmospheric loss dB 0.20 0.20 0.20
Rain loss dB 0.00 2.00 0.00
Satellite G/T dB/K -6.00 -6.00 -6.00
Boltzmann's constant dBWI/K/Hz -228.60 -228.60 -228.60
Noise bandwidth dBHz 61.21 61.21 61.21
Uplink thermat C/N dB 16.69 14.89 16.69
Cross-pol C/t dB 27.00 25.00 27.00
Copol C} dB 27.00 25.00 27.00
Intersystem interference C/l dB 15.88 13.88 15.88
Uplink total C/(N+1) dB 12.90 10.90 12.90
Downlink: | [Clear sky |Clear sky [Downlink fade
Transmit power at saturation dBW 17.40 17.40 17.40
Total output backoff dB 3.10 445 3.10
Transmit output loss dB 1.40 1.40 1.40
Transmit antenna gain dBi 23.20 23.20 23.20
Number of carriers dB 15.00 15.00 15.00
EIRP per carrier dBW 21.10 18.75 21.10
Downlink free space loss dB 196.60 196.60 196.80
Atmosperic loss dB 0.20 0.20 0.20
Rain degradation dB 0.00 0.00 2.00
Earth terminal G/T dB/K 21.10 21.10 21.10
Boltzmann's constant dBW/K/Hz 228.80 228.60 228.60
Downilink thermal C/N dB 12.79 11.44 10.78
Intermodulation C/l dB 18.70 18.70 16.70
Cross-pol C/i dB 27.00 25.68 27.00
Copol Clt dB 27.00 25.66 27.00
intersystem interference C/l dB 15.88 14.53 15.88
Downlink total C/(N+1) dB 9.84 8.74 8.71
Total link C/(N+1) dB 8.09 6.68 7.31
Total link Eb/{No+io) dB 7.42 6.00 6.63
Margin dB 1.42 0.00 0.63
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Figure 7C. C-Band Link Budget for 45 Mb/s Transmission between 8 m Earth Stations

Link Analysis

System parameters: [Unit {Clear sky Uplink Fade Downlink Fade
Uplink frequency GHz 6.11 6.11 8.1

Data rate kbps 45,000.00 45,000.00 45.000.00
Modulation QPSK QPSK QPSK
FEC Rate-3/4 Rate-3/4 Rate-3/4
Occupied bandwidth kHz 36,000.00 36,000.00 36,000.00
Downlink frequency GHz 3.89 3.89 3.89
Required overall link Eb/No dB 7.50 7.50 7.50
Required overall link C/N dB 8.47 8.47 8.47
Earth terminal antenna m 8.00 8.00 8.00
Transponder bandwidth MHz 36.00 36.00 36.00
SFD dBW/sg(m) -90.00 -80.00 -90.00
Total PFD dBW/sg(m) -93.98 -96.98 -93.98
Uplink: ! |Clear sky {Uplink fade |Clear sky
Transmit power dBW 19.62 19.62 19.62
Transmit loss dB 1.50 1.50 1.50
Transmit antenna gain dBi 51.40 51.40 51.40
Uplink free space loss dB 200.10 200.10 200.10
Atmospheric loss dB - 0.20 0.20 0.20

Rain loss dB 0.00 3.00 0.00
Satellite G/T dB/K -6.00 -6.00 -6.00
Boltzmann's constant dBW/K/Hz -228.80 -228.60 -228.860
Noise bandwidth dBHz 75.56 75.56 75.56
Uplink thermal C/N dB 16.26 13.26 16.28
Cross-pol C/l dB 27.00 24.00 27.00
Copol C/t dB 27.00 24.00 27.00
intersystem interference C/l dB 17.67 14.67 17.87
Uplink total C/(N+1) dB 13.49 10.49 13.489
Downlink: ! |Clear sky |Clear sky [Downlink fade
Transmit power at saturation dBwW 17.40 17.40 17.40
Total output backoff dB 1.38 2.79 1.39
Transmit output loss dB 1.40 1.40 1.40
Transmit antenna gain dBi 23.20 23.20 23.20
Number of carriers dB 0.00 0.00 0.00
EIRP per carrier daBw 37.81 38.41 37.81
Downlink free space loss dB 196.60 196.80 196.60
Atmosperic loss dB 0.20 0.20 0.20

Rain degradation dB 0.00 0.00 2.00
Earth terminal G/T dB/K 28.20 28.20 28.20
Boltzmann's constant dBW/K/Hz 228.60 228.60 228.60
Downlink thermal C/N dB 22.24 20.85 20.24
Intermodulation C/t dB 40.00 38.60 40.00
Cross-pol C/l dB 27.00 25.60 27.00
Copol C/i dB 27.00 25.60 27.00
intersystem interference C/| dB 17.67 16.27 17.67
Downlink total C/(N+1) dB 15.66 14.26 15.14
Total link C/{N+l) dB 11.43 8.97 11.23
Total link Eb/(No+io) dB 10.46 8.00 10.26
Margin dB 2.96 0.50 2.786
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Figure 8. C-Band Link Budget for 1/2-Transponder TV-FM Transmission
from 10 m Uplink to 3.5 m Earth Stations
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Figure 9A. Ku-Band Link Budget for 64 kb/s Transmission between 1.2 m Earth Stations

Link Analysis

Systemn parameters: ]Unit ]Clear sky Uplink Fade Downlink Fade
Uplink frequency GHz 14.03 14.03 14.03
Data rate kbps 84.00 84.00 64.00
Modulation QPSK QPSK QPSK
FEC Rate-1/2 RS Rate-3/4 RS Rate-3/4 RS
Occupied bandwidth kHz 83.71 83.71 83.71
Downlink frequency GHz 12.53 12.53 12.53
Required overall fink Eb/No daB 5.00 5.00 5.00
Required overall link C/N dB 3.83 3.83 3.83
Earth terminal antenna m 1.20 1.20 1.20
Transponder bandwidth MHz 54.00 54.00 54.00
SFD dBW/sq(m) -86.00 -86.00 -86.00
Total PFD dBW/sq(m) -91.00 -95.00 -91.00
Uplink: | |Clear sky |Uplink fade |Clear sky
Transmit power dBwW 4.00 4.00 4.00
Transmit loss daB 1.00 1.00 1.00
Transmit antenna gain dBi 42.80 42.80 42.80
Uplink free space loss daB 207.10 207.10 207.10
Atmospheric loss dB 0.50 0.50 0.50
Rain loss dB 0.00 © 400 0.00
Satellite G/T dB/K 1.50 1.50 1.50
Boltzmann's constant dBWI/K/Hz -228.60 -228.60 -228.60
Noise bandwidth dBHz 49.23 49.23 49.23
Uplink thermal C/N dB 19.07 15.07 19.07
Cross-pol C/i dB 24.00 20.00 24.00
Copol C/i dB 24.00 20.00 24.00
intersystem interference G/l dB 13.03 9.03 13.03
Uplink total C/(N+1) dB 11.54 7.54 11.54
Downlink: } |Clear sky [Clear sky |Downlink fade
Transmit power at saturation dBW 20.00 20.00 20.00
Total output backoff dB 2.50 4.50 2.50
Transmit output loss dB 2.50 2.50 2.50
Transmit antenna gain dBi 29.80 29.80 29.80
Number of carriers dB 27.00 27.00 27.00
EIRP per carrier dBW 17.80 15.80 17.80
Downlink free space loss dB 208.10 208.10 206.10
Atmosperic loss dB 0.50 0.50 0.50
Rain degradation daB 0.00 0.00 5.00
Earth terminal G/T dB/K 20.80 20.80 20.60
Bolizmann's constant dBWIK/Hz 228.80 228.60 228.60
Downlink thermal C/N dB 11.47 9.17 6.17
Intermoduiation C/l dB 16.00 16.00 16.00
Cross-pol C/l dB 24.00 22.00 24.00
Copol C/i dB 24.00 22.00 24.00
Intersystem interference C/i dB 13.03 11.03 13.03
Downlink total C/(N+1) dB 7.98 6.24 4,89
Total link C/(N+1) dB 6.40 3.83 4.04
Total link Eb/(No+io) daB 7.56 5.00 5.21
Margin dB 2.56 0.00 0.21
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Figure 9B. Ku-Band Link Budget for 1544 kb/s Transmission between 2.4 m Earth

Stations
Link Analysis
System parameters: 1Un§t %Clear sky Uplink Fade Downlink Fade
Uplink frequency GHz 14.03 14.03 14.03
Data rate kbps 1,544 .00 1,544 .00 1,544.00
Modulation QPSK QPSK QPSK
FEC Rate-3/4 RS Rate-3/4 RS Rate-3/4 RS
Occupied bandwidth kHz 1,296.96 1,296.96 1,296.96
Downlink frequency GHz 12.53 12.53 12.53
Required overall link Eb/No dB 8.00 6.00 8.00
Required overall link C/N dB 8,78 8.76 8.78
Earth terminal antenna m 2.40 2.40 2.40
Transponder bandwidth MHz 54.00 54.00 54.00
SFD dBW/sa(m) -82.00 -82.00 -82.00
Total PFD dBW/sq(m) -87.10 -91.10 -87.10
Uplink: ! lCIear sky lUplink fade lClear sky
Transmit power daBwW 14.30 14.30 14.30
Transmit loss daB 1.50 1.50 1.50
Transmit antenna gain dBi 48.930 48.90 48.90
Uplink free space loss dB 207.10 207.10 207.10
Atmospheric loss dB 0.50 0.50 0.50
Rain loss dB 0.00 4.00 0.00
Satellite G/T dB/K 1.50 1.50 1.50
Boitzmann's constant dBW/K/Hz -228.80 -228.60 -228.60
Noise bandwidth dBHz 81.13 61.13 61.13
Uplink thermal C/N dB 23.07 19.07 23.07
Cross-pol C/i dB 24.00 20.00 24.00
Copol C/l dB 24.00 20.00 24.00
Intersystem interference C/l dB 15.96 11.96 15.96
Uplink total C/(N+1) dB 14.17 10.17 14.17
Downlink: | [Clear sky {Clear sky |Downiink fade
Transmit power at saturation dBW 20.00 20.00 20.00
Total output backoff dB 2.55 4.55 2.55
Transmit output loss dB 250 2.50 2.50
Transmit antenna gain dBi 29.80 29.80 29.80
Number of carriers dB 15.00 15.00 15.00
EIRP per carrier daBW 29.75 27.75 29.75
Downlink free space loss dB 206.10 208.10 206.10
Atmosperic loss dB 0.50 0.50 0.50
Rain degradation dB 0.00 0.00 5.0
Earth terminal G/T dB/K 25.50 25.50 2550
Boltizmann's constant dBW/K/Hz 22880 228.80 228.80
Downlink thermal C/N dB 16.12 14.12 11.12
Intermodulation C/l dB 16.30 18.30 16.30
Cross-pol C/l dB 24.00 22.00 24.00
Copol C/l daB 24.00 22.00 24.00
Intersystem interference C/i dB 15.96 13.96 15.96
Downlink total C/(N+1) dB 10.90 9.39 873
Total link C/(N+i} dB 9.23 6.76 7.64
Total link Eb/(No+io) dB 8.47 6.00 6.88
Margin dB 2.47 0.00 0.88
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Figure 9C. Ku-Band Link Budget for 60 Mb/s Transmission between 5.5 m Earth

Stations
Link Analysis
System parameters: ]Unit ]Ciear sky Uplink Fade Downlink Fade
Uplink frequency GHz 14.03 14.03 14.03
Data rate kbps 80,000.00 £0,000.00 60,000.00
Modulation QPSK QPSK QPSK
FEC Rate-3/4 Rate-3/4 Rate-3/4
Occupied bandwidth kHz 50,400.00 50,400.00 50,400.00
Downlink frequency GHz 12.53 12.53 12.53
Required overall link Eb/No dB 7.50 7.50 7.50
Required overall link C/N dB 8.26 8.26 8.26
Earth terminal antenna m 5.50 5.80 5.50
Transponder bandwidth MHz 54.00 54.00 54.00
SFD dBW/sg(m) -85.00 -85.00 -85.00
Total PFD dBW/sg(m) -87.30 -91.30 -87.30
Uplink: | [Clear sky |Uplink fade [Clear sky
Transmit power dBW 23.00 23.00 23.00
Transmit loss dB 2.00 2.00 2.00
Transmit antenna gain dBi 55.50 55.50 55.50
Uplink free space loss dB 207.10 207.10 207.10
Atmospheric loss dB 0.50 0.50 0.50
Rain loss dB 0.00 4.00 0.00
Satellite GIT dB/K 1.50 1.50 1.50
Boltzmann's constant dBW/K/Hz -228.80 -228.60 -228.80
Noise bandwidth dBHz 77.02 77.02 77.02
Uplink thermal C/N dB 21.98 17.98 21.98
Cross-pol C/i dB 24.00 20.00 24.00
Copol C/i dB 24.00 20.00 24.00
Intersystem interference C/l dB 17.48 13.48 17.48
Uplink total C/(N+1) dB 14.91 10.91 14.91
Downlink: | |Clear sky [Clear sky {Downlink fade
Transmit power at saturation dBwW 20.00 20.00 20.00
Total output backoff dB 0.92 3.15 0.92
Transmit output loss dB 280 2.50 2.50
Transmit antenna gain dBi 29.80 29.80 29.80
Number of carriers dB 0.00 0.00 0.00
EIRP per carrier dBW 46.38 4415 46.38
Downlink free space loss dB 206.10 2086.10 206.10
Atmosperic loss dB 0.50 0.50 0.50
Rain degradation dB 0.00 0.00 5.00
Earth terminal G/T dB/K 32.80 32.860 32.60
Bolizmann's constant dBW/K/Hz 228.60 228.60 228.60
Downlink thermal C/IN dB 23.96 21.73 18.96
intermodulation C/! dB 40.00 37.77 40.00
Cross-pol C/l dB 24.00 21.77 24.00
Copol C/t dB 24.00 21.77 24.00
Intersystem interference C/i dB 17.46 18.23 17.48
Downlink total C/{(N+) dB 15.22 12.99 14.12
Total link C/(N+1) dB 12.05 8.82 11.49
Total link Eb/{(No+lo}) dB 11.30 8.086 10.73
Margin dB 3.80 0.56 3.23
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Figure 10. Ku-Band Link Budget for 26 MHz-Transponder TV-FM Transmission
from 5.5 m Uplink to 3.5 m Earth Stations

TV/FM LINK BUDGET

EARTH STATION EIRP

PATH LOSS (CLEAR SKY)
UP~-LINK RAIN ATTENUATION
SATURATION FLUX DENSITY
INPUT BACKOFF (TOTAL)

INPUT BACKOFF (PER CARRIER)
SATELLITE G/T

C/N - THERMAL NOISE
C/I - COCHANNEL INTERFERRENCE
C/I - ADJ. SATELLITE INTERFERENCE

¢/ (N+I) UP-LINK

SATELLITE EIRP
OUTPUT BACKOFF
OUTPUT BACKOFF (PER CARRIER)
SATELLITE EIRP (PER CARRIER)
PATH LOSS (CLEAR SKY)
DOWN-LINK RAIN DEGREDATION
EARTH STATION POINTING ERRCR
EARTH STATION G/T (CLEAR~-SKY)

(TOTAL)
(TOTAL)

C/N THERMAL NOISE
C/1 - COCHANNEL INTERFERENCE
C/I - ADJ. SATELLITE INTERFERENCE

C/ (N+I) DOWN-LINK

C/ (N+I) TOTAL
REQUIRED SYSTEM MARGIN

NET C/(N+I)
NET C/{(No+Io)

E.S. RF POWER (WATTS/CARRIER)= 78.
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13. Station Keeping and Antenna Pointing Accuracy

The satellite will be station-kept with excursions not to exceed £0.05° East-West and
North-South of the nominal orbital location during the normal in-orbit operation
throughout the spacecraft life.

14. Power Flux Densitv and Energy Dispersal Considerations

The highest satellite EIRP at the beam peak is 45.4 dBW in C-band. The corresponding
power flux density (PFD) in any 4 kHz at the Earth’s surface is:

PFD = 45.4 dBW - 163.2 dB + 10*log(4/36000)
=-157.3 dBW/m’ in any 4 kHz.

This PFD value is below the Power Flux Density Limit defined in FCC’s FCR Section
25.208 and the ITU Radio Regulations 2566, which is -152 dBW/m’® in any 4 kHz for
angles of arrival between 0 and 5 degrees above the horizontal plane.

For 54-Mhz Ku-band transponders, the peak EIRP of the satellite downlink beam is
maximum at 55.8 dBW in Europe for elevation angles larger than 10 degrees. The
corresponding PFD limit in any 4 kHz bandwidth is -148.7 dBW/ m’ at the earth’s
surface, which is below the PFD limit defined in the RR 2570 as follows:

PFD = -150 +0.5(5-5) = -147.5 dBW/ m’ in any 4kHz band for angles of arrival &
10 degrees above the horizontal plane.

For analog TV-FM transmissions, energy dispersal with peak-to-peak frequency
deviation of 2 Mhz to 2.5 Mhz will be used. The sweep frequency of the energy dispersal
waveform will be in accordance with the selected TV standard, i.e., 25 or 30 Hz
triangular waveform superimposed on the baseband video waveform. In the case of
analog TV transmission, compliance with the PFD limits will be ensured with necessary
output backoff from saturation.

15. Frequency Tolerance

The accuracy of the frequency conversion between uplink and downlink transmissions is

determined by the on-board local oscillator frequency stability. The frequency conversion
error in C-band or Ku-band will not exceed £5 in 10° under all circumstances throughout

the in-orbit life.

16. Cessation of Emissions

Any one of the transponders can be individually turned on and off by ground command to
enable cessation of emission from the satellite as required.
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17. Interference Analvsis

There are adjacent ¢/Ku-band satellites which are 3° away from 37.5° W, such as
INTELSAT 319.5°F and INTELSAT 325.5° E. It will be necessary to coordinate with
these satellites.

The Orion satellite hetworks are designed to be compatible with orbital spacing
requirements for 2° typical. All earth stations accessing the satellite will meet the
requisite antenna sidelobe performance standards of 29-25log(8) dBi for co-pol and 18-
25log(®) dBi for cross-pol.

Interference assessment for representative transmission parameters indicates that there
will be no serious interference problem between the Orion satellite network and other
adjacent satellite networks at 3° orbital separation.

17.1 C-Band Interference Assessment
Tables $A and 8B show the interference assessment for C-band single entry interferences
between the Orion network and adjacent satellite networks which are separated by at

least 3°,

Table 8A. C-band Interference into Orion Network

Uplink Interference:

Interfering carrier Digital MCPC Analog TV-FM
Bandwidth 35.8 MHz 2 Mhz (EDS)
Power flux density (dBW/m*) -84 -84
Transmit antenna (gn) 5 15
Sidelobe isolation (dB) for 3° spacing 30.6 39.9
[nterferer spectral power flux density -190.1 -186.9
(dBW/m’/Hz)

Orion carrier SCPC MCPC
Bandwidth 64 kHz 36 MHz
Power flux density (dBW/m") 1173 -94
Spectrat power flux density -165.4 -169.5
(dBW/m*/Hz)

Oron uplink C/1 (dB) 247 17.4
Downlink Interference:

Interfering carrier Digital MCPC Analog TV-FM
Cammner EIRP (dBW/carrier) 37 37
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Sidelobe discrimination (dB)

20.7*

30.9%*

Interferer spectral power density
(dBW/Hz)

-59.2

-56.9

Orion carrier

SCPC 64 kb/s

Digital MCPC 36 MHz

Carrier EIRP (dBW/carrier) 8.4 31.7
Spectral power density (dBW/Hz) -39.6 -43.9
Orion downlink C/1 (dB) 19.6 13.0
Notes: * for 2.4 m, ** for 8 m receive terminals

Table 8B. C-Band Interference into Adjacent Satellite Network
Uplink Interference:
Orion carrier Digital SCPC TV-FM
Bandwidth 64 kHz 2 Mhz (EDS)
Power flux density (dBW/m”) -113 -80
Transmit antenna (m) 2.4 10
Sidelobe discrimination (dB) 23.9 36.2
Interferer spectral power flux density -184.9 -179.2
(dBW/m’* /Hz)
Adjacent satellite carrier SCPC SCPC
Bandwidth 64 kHz 64 kHz
Power flux density (dBW/m”) -117.0 -117.0
Spectral power flux density (dBW/m* -165.1 -165.1
/Hz)
Adjacent satellite uplink C/I (dB) 19.8 14.1
Downlink interference:
Orion carrier Digital SCPC TV-FM
Carrier EIRP (dBW/carrier) 114 40.9
Sidelobe discrimination (dB) 20.7* 30.9%*
Spectral power density (dBW/Hz) -57.4 -53.0
Adjacent satellite carrier SCPC SCpC
Carrier EIRP (dBW/carrier) 104 104
Interferer spectral power density -37.7 -37.7
(dBW/Hz)
Adjacent satellite downlink C/I (dB) 19.7 153

Notes: * for 2.4 m, ** for 8 m receive terminals
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The results in Table 8A and 8B show that the worst-case C/I ratio for the case of TV-FM
signal interfering into small 64 kb/s SCPC is in the range of 13 to 15 dB. By using picture
modulation of the TV-FM carrier at all times, the C/I margin can be improved by about 5
dB. Since the digital transmission performance can be met with Eb/No of 5-8 dB,
depending on the FEC rates employed, the intersystem interferences do not introduce any
appreciable degradation in the link performance for both uplink and downlink.

17.2 Ku-Band Interference Assessment

Tables 9A and 9B show the interference assessment for Ku-band single entry
interferences between the Orion network and adjacent satellite networks.

Table 9A. Ku-band Interference into Orion Network

Uplink Interference:

Interfering carrier Digital MCPC Analog TV-FM
Bandwidth 43.8 MHz 2 Mhz (EDS)
Power flux density (dBW/m®) -80.1 -79
Transmit antenna (m) 3.5 15
Sidelobe isolation (dB) for 3° spacing 35.1 472
Interferer spectral power flux density -191.6 -189.2
(dBW/m’/Hz)

Orion carrier SCPC MCPC
Bandwidth 64 kHz 50.4 MHz
Power flux density (dBW/m") -118 -87.3
Spectral 2;!)ovver flux density -166.1 -164.3
(dBW/m*/Hz)

Orion uplink C/I (dB) 255 24.9
Downlink Interference:

Interfering carrier Digital MCPC Analog TV-FM
Carrier EIRP (dBW/carrier) 43 43.7
Sidelobe discrimination (dB) 23.9%* 37.1%*
Interferer spectral power density -57.3 -54.0

(dBW/Hz)

Orion carrier

SCPC 64 kb/s

Digital MCPC 50 MHz

Carrier EIRP (dBW/carrier) 17.8 46.4
Spectral power density (dBW/Hz) -30.2 -30.5
Orion downlink C/I (dB) 27.1 23.5

Notes: * for 1.2 m, ** for 5.5 m receive terminals
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Table 9B. Ku-Band Interference into Adjacent Satellite Network

Uplink Interference:

Orion carrier Digital SCPC 26 Mhz TV-FM
Bandwidth 64 kHz 2 Mhz (EDS)
Power flux density (dBW/m” ) -112 -81.3
Transmit antenna (m) 1.8 5.5
Sidelobe discrimination (dB) 28.9 38.5
Interferer spectral power flux density -188.9 -182.8
(dBW/m” /Hz)

Adjacent satellite carrier SCPC SCPC
Bandwidth 64 kHz 64 kHz
Power flux density (dBW/m") -114.0 -114.0
Spectral power flux density (dBW/m* -162.1 -162.1
/Hz)

Adjacent satellite uplink C/I (dB) 26.8 20.7
Downlink interference:

Orion carrier Digital SCPC TV-FM
Carrier EIRP (dBW/carrier) 17.8 43.7
Sidelobe discrimination (dB) 27.4* 33.4%*
Spectral power density (dBW/Hz) -57.6 -52.7
Adjacent satellite carrier SCPC SCPC
Carrier EIRP (dBW/carrier) 10.8 10.8
Interferer spectral power density -37.3 -37.3
(d(BW/Hz)

Adjacent satellite downlink C/I (dB) 20.3 154

Notes: * for 1.8 m, ** for 3.5 m receive terminals

The results in Table 9A and 9B show that the worst-case C/I ratio is 15.4 dB for the case
of analog TV interfering into 64 kb/s SCPC. By picture modulating the TV-FM carrier at
all times, the C/I margin can be improved by about 5 dB. Hence, the result indicates that
there will be no serious interference problem with the adjacent satellite networks.

18. TT&C Arrangement

The existing Ku-band TT&C facility at Mt. Jackson in Virginia and Satellite Control
Facility in Rockville, Maryland will be used with upgrades.
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19. Spaceeraft Characteristics

The major characteristics of the spacecraft are given in the table below.

Characteristics of Orion Satellite

Parameter Characteristics
Spacecraft stabilization:
Transfer Orbit 3-axis stabilized
On-station 3-axis stabilized
Mission life 15 years
Reliability: 75% of achieving full performance at end of life
Station keeping accuracy +0.05° E-W and N-S
Antenna pointing accuracy +0.05° normal
+0.1° during station keeping maneuver
Eclipse capability 100%
Mass summary: '
Spacecraft dry mass 1950 kg
Propellant 2450 kg
Launch mass 4400 kg
Power summary:
Spacecraft requirement 10830 W
Solar Array at EOL 11100 W
Solar Array at BOL 13000 W
Dimension:
Spacecraft platform Approx.2.2mx22mx24m
Solar array wing span Approx. 26 m
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A detailed breakdown of the satellite’s mass and power budgets are given in the tables
below.

Spacecraft Mass Budget Summary

Parameter Mass
Spacecraft dry mass: 1950 kg
Communications payload 550kg
TT&C 50kg
AOCS 130 kg
Structure 250 kg
Mechanism 115kg
Propulsion 160 kg
Power (Solar array and batteries 495 kg
Thermal 125 kg
Others 75kg
Propellant and pressurant 2450 kg
Total mass: 4400 kg

Spacecraft Power Budget Summary

Parameter Power
Subsystem:
Communication payload 9500 W
TT&C 100 W
Attitude & orbit control 110 W
Thermal (Equinox) 350 W
Battery charging 650 W
Other 120 W
Total requirement: 10830 W
Solar array power capability:
Beginning-of-life (BOL) 13000 W
End-of-life (EOL) 11100 W
Margin at EOL: 270 W
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Engineering Certification

I hereby certify that I am the technically qualified person responsible for the preparation
of the engineering information contained in the Technical Exhibit of this Application, that
I am familiar with Part 25 of the Commission’s rules, and that the technical information
is complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

Vet 1. S

Robert M. Sorbello, Ph.D.
Executive Director

Systems Engineering

Loral Orion Network Systems, Inc.
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Exhibit No. 2

ESTIMATED CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Description Estimated Costs

Spacecraft, launch and insurance® $240 million

TT&C Construction** $1 million

Operations (1st year) $10 million

* Orion intends to use turnkey arrangements which result in a single, integrated

price from the principal spacecraft and launch vendors.

«x  Upgrade of existing TT&C facilities
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ITEM 8.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors
Orion Network Systems, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Orion Network Systems, Inc. as
of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 1997. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our respon-
sibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consoli-
dated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also in-
cludes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Orion Network Systems, Inc. at December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 1997, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Washington, DC
February 20, 1998
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ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. .......... .o i
ReStTICtEd ASS8LIS & vt vttt ee et e
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of
$734,000 and $100,000 at December 31, 1997 and 1996, respec-
12| T R R
Prepaid expenses and other current assets............. e

TOtal CUITENE B55EE8. .0 vt v v v vt orueeanoaosnanssossaosscasnsos

Restricted and segregated assets .......cooveneiiioi oo

Property and equipment, at cost:
021 Vs
Telecommunications eqUIPMEnt. ... ..o veiiiirrreereniseeeees
Furniture and computer equipment. ..........ciiiieiiiiiaaaan
Satellite and related equipment ..........ovvineirnneiiriions

Less: accumulated depreciation ...t
Satellite construction in Progress .......c.oevevesronenenecanas

Net property and equipment ...........coeaeeieeerionennanan
Deferred financing costs, NEt. .. ovvvi vt irencncencssossoassses
Other assets, Mt ... oo vrerineernnseecnaseniosasssosasccannns

] 7 B Y1 - S

December 31,
1997

December 31,
1996

$ 70,008,657

$ 32,187,807

50,064,014 —_
11,780,972 6,473,316
6,846,598 3,583,403
138,700,241 42244526
306,825,961 10,000,000
73,911 73,911
40,654,418 25,342,528
8,626,501 4849711
322,159,088 321,247,346
371,513,918 351,513,496
(77,079,857) (68,224,957)
106,843,174 4,560,844
401,277,235 287,849,383
22,510,041 12,918,233
27,178,809 5,252,302
$896,492,287 $358,264.444

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)

December 31, December 31,
1997 1996
Liabilities and Stockholders’ deficit
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable .. ... $ 5,230,567 $ 6,411,028
Accrued liabilities .. ... o 10,594,952 7,653,208
Other current liabilities . ... ... .o o 7,129,861 5,406,072
Interest payable. ...t 24,771,509 8,583,882
Current portion of long-termdebt...............c0vuuvnroi. .. 6,406,143 34,975,060
Total current labilities. .........ooviiniiine e, 54,133,032 63,029,250
Long-termdebt........cooiiiiiiii i 790,670,606 218,236,839
Other liabilities .. ......oouii i 21,803,582 46,402,299
Limited Partners’ interest in Orion Atlantic ..................... —_ 10,130,058
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable preferred stock:
Series A 8% Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock,
$.01 par value; 15,000 shares authorized; 6,933 and 13,871 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 1997 and 1996, respec-
tively, plus accrued dividends .................oovnnno. ... 8,613,508 16,097,880
Series B 8% Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock,
$.01 par value; 5,000 shares authorized; 2,059 and 4,298 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 1997 and 1996, respec-
tively, plus accrued dividends . ............c.oovvoveonnnn. ... 2,466,755 4,804,486
Series C 6% Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock,
$.01 par value; 150,000 shares authorized; 82,641 and 0 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 1997 and 1996, respec-
tively, plus accrued dividends and accretion.................. 65,653,949 —_
Stockholders’ deficit:
Common stock, $.01 par value; 40,000,000 shares authorized:
15,959,089 and 11,244,665 issued and outstanding at December
31,1997 and 1996, respectively........ovvrerennennnnnnnn. 159,591 112,447
Capital inexcessof parvalue.............ovverennnnnnnnn .. 153,294,210 86,932,391
Treasury stock, 269,274 and 259,515 shares .................... (91,490) —
Foreign currency translation adjustment....................... (955,800) —
Accumulated deficit ............. ... (199,255,656) (87,481,206)
Total stockholders’ deficit . .........ovveeieennnnnnnn.. ., (46,849,145) (436,368)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit. .................... $ 896,492,287 $358,264,444

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

S EIVICE TEVAIUE ittt it ettt inneenenns

Operating expenses:

Sales and marketing ........ ... o ol
Engineering and technical services...........
General and administrative .................
Depreciation and amortization ..............

Total operating expenses .................

Loss from operations ...............c00vvnnn.
Other expense (income):
Interestincome ...........cviinenniiinnn.

Interest €Xpense.........c.oovvveneninnnnns
Other

...................................

Loss before extraordinary loss on extinguishment
of debt, minority interest and preacquisition
loss of acquired subsidiary..................

Extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debt ...

Limited Partners’ interest in the net loss of Orion
AtlantiC .. o e i e

=5 A (o
Preferred stock dividend, net of forfeitures .....

Net loss attributable to common stockholders. ..

Extraordinary loss per share, net of minority in-
terest — basicand diluted . .................

Net loss per common share-basic and diluted ...
Weighted average common shares outstanding . .

Year Ended December 31,

5% 19% 1995
$ 72,740,631  $41,847292  $ 22283882
26,531,298 15,457,260 16,968,926
19,423,372 11,465,040 8,613,399
7,750,208 5,190,619 5,554,690
13,955,718 9,138,973 6,574,202
48,161,257 36,948,158 31,403,376
115,821,853 78,200,050 69,114,593
(43,081222)  (363527758)  (46,830,711)
(24,711,461) (2,313,842) (1,924,822)
83,769,168 27,764,126 24,738,446
507,089 23,649 3,382,506
59,564,796 25.473,933 26,196,130
(102,646,018)  (61,826,691)  (73,026,841)
(15,763,220) — —
12,042,978 34,631,281 46,111,663
626,246 — —
(105,740,014)  (27,195410)  (26,915,178)
6,034,436 1,369,665 1,329,007
$(111,774450)  $(28,565.075)  $(28,244.185)
$ (56) § — $ —
$ (9.60) $ (2.62) $ (3.07)
11,639,711 10,951,823 9,103,505

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

T

Common Stock Capital in Foreign Stockgrﬁfiers’

Number Exzcess of Accumulated Treasu Currency Equity

of Shares Amount Par Value Deficit Stock'” Translation  (Defidt)
Balance at December 31,1994, ... ... ... 7,045,523 § 70,455 § 33,952,062 $ (30,671,946) § — 8 — § 3350571
Issuance of common stock . . ......... 4,002,941 40,030 50,960,330 e — — 51,000,360
Exercise of stock options and warrants . . 67,501 675 573221 — — — 573,896
Preferred stock dividend, net of forfeitures — —_ — (1,329,007) —_ — (1,329,007)
Netlossfor 1995. ...... ... ... .. .. e — —  (26,915,178) e — (26,915,178)
Balance at December 31,1995.......... 11,115965 111,160 85,485,613  (58,916,131) e e 26,680,642

Conversion of preferred stock to common

stock ... 91,071 911 804,034 — — — 804,645
Issuance of stock warrants . .. ........ — — 300,000 — — — 300,000
Exercise of stock options and warrants . . 37,629 376 342,744 — — — 343,120
Preferred stock dividend, net of forfeitures — — — (1,369,665) — - (1,369,665)
Netlossfor 1996. . ................ — — —  (27,195410) — — (27.195,410)

Balance at December 31,1996. ......... 11,244,665 112,447 86,932,391  (87,481,206) — — (436,368)
Issuance of commonstock . .......... 11286 113 142,317 — —_— — 142,430
Conversion of preferred stock to common

SEOCK v v vttt e 3,351,728 33,517 38,811,976 — — —_ 38,845,493
Conversion of debentures to common

Stock ... 735292 7353 10,284,314 — —_ —_— 10,291,667
Issuance of common stock for the pur- .

chase of APSC ................. 85,715 857 1,199,143 — e — 1,200,000
Issuance of common stock for interest

payments ...... ... iian. . 205,229 2,052 2,622,947 — — — 2,624,999
Issuance of common stock for preferred

stock dividend payments .......... 120,954 1210 2,069,252 —_ —_ — 2,070,462
Issuance of warrants relating to Senior -

Notes and Senior Discount Notes, net . - — 9,223,674 — _ — 9,223,674
Exercise of stock options and warrants . . 176,489 1,765 1,764,295 — _ e 1,766,060
Employee stock purchase plan........ 27,731 277 243,901 -— — — 244,178
Preferred stock dividend and accretion,

net of forfeitures . ... ............ —_ —_ — (6,034,436) — — (6,034,436)
Foreign currency translation. . ........ _ _— —_ -_— - (955,300) (955,800)
Purchase of treasury stock . . ......... —_ — - —  (91,490) — (91,490)
Netloss for1997. . ... .. .o . — — — {105,740,014) — — _(105,740,014)

Balance at December 31,1997.......... 15,959,089 $159,591 $153294210 $(199,255,656) $(91,490) $(955.800) $ (46,849,145)

@) Includes 269,274 treasury shares of which 259,515 are carried at no cost.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating Activities

Net oSS . o et e e

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debt ... ..
Depreciation and amortization ................
Amortization of deferred financing costs .........
Provision forbaddebts. ......................
Accretion of interest ...

Limited Partners’ interest in the net loss of Orion
Atlantic and other minority interest ...........

Gainonsaleofassets ..........o0ovvennn...

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable. ....... ... ... .. Ll
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . ... ..
Otherassets ............oiivuenrenennan.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .......
Other current liabilities . . ...................
Interestpayable ................ ... ......

Net cash used in operating activities ..............
Investing Activities
Capital expenditures................cc.uunn...
Increase in restricted and segregated assets . ........
Release of restricted and segregated assets .........
Satellite construction costs, including capitalized
interest ... ... . i e e
Advance on DACOM contract,net...............
Refund from satellite manufacturer ..............
Purchase of Teleport Europe, net of cash acquired. . .
Other. . e

Net cash used in investing activities ..............
Financing Activities
Limited Partners’ capital contributions. ............
Redemption of Limited Partner interest ...........
Debt and equity financing costs . .................
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable preferred stock.
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of
iSSUANCE COStS. . .. vt v it
Treasury stock purchase .......................
PPUbOImowings ... ....ooiviiniinnennnnvnnnnn.
Proceeds from issuance of debt ..................
Proceeds from senior notes payable banks and notes
payable ...... ... .. e
Repayment of senior notes payable to banks and notes
payable . ... i i e
Swap terminationfee ..........................
Payment of satellite incentives .. .................
Other .. i i i e e

Net cash provided by financing activities ..........

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . . ..

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period.........

Year Ended December 31,

1997 19
$(105,740,014) $(27,195,410)
15,763,220 —
48,161,257 36,948,158
2,409,787 2,130,588
1,021,618 919,453
34,347,467 2,371,506
(18,203,066) —
(12,042,978) (34,631,281)
— (54,738)
(2.922,508) (2.203,171)
(2.277.177) (285,895)
(3,639,941) (69,708)
(2,639,393) (3,621,847)
1,543,035 3,298,544
16,180273 578,803
(28,038,420) (21,814,998)
(11,062,046) (12,625,444)
(419,187,388) (10,000,000)
90,500,480 —
(102,282,330) (3,750,231)
12,250,000 9,900,000
(8,374,845) —
— (37,865)
(438,156,129) (16,513,540)
—_ 30,135,000
(26,122.220) (2,265.291)
2,152,668 343,120
(91,490) —
770,397,000 —
(216,723 484) (27,802,281)
(5287.827) -
(18,620,886) —
(1,688.362) 14,994,212
504,015,339 15,404,760
37,820,850 (22,923,778)
32,187,807 55,111,585

$ 70,008,657

$ 32,187,807

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

52

1995

$(26,915,178)

31,403,376
2,130,588
277,529
5,185,834

(46,089,010)
(59,301)

(4,915,257)
(3,147,592)
(519,773)

7,327,377
3,670,988

__(885106)
(32,535,525)

(8,549,799)
(510,613)
2,750,000

{ 558,8‘5 )
(6,869,229)

7,600,000
(4,450,000)

4,483,001
51,974,436
2,275,000

18,918,984
(14,385,015)

16,881,102

83,297,508
43,892,754
11,218,831

$ 55,111,585



ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization.

Orion Network Systems, Inc.’s (“Orion” or the “Company”) principal business is the provision of
satellite communications for private communications networks and video distribution and other satellite
transmission services. From its inception in 1982 through January 20, 1995, when Orion 1 commenced
commercial operations, Orion was a development stage enterprise. Prior to January 1995, Orion’s efforts
were devoted primarily to monitoring the construction, launch and in-orbit testing of Orion 1, product
development, marketing and sales of interim private communications network services, raising financing
and planning Orion 2 and Orion 3.

Through January 31, 1997, Orion Satellite Corporation (whose name has been changed to Orion
Network Services, Inc.) was the sole general partner in Orion Atlantic L.P. (“Orion Atlantic”) and had
a 41 2/3% equity interest in Orion Atlantic. As a result of Orion’s control of Orion Atlantic, Orion’s
consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Orion Atlantic. All of Orion Atlantic’s reve-
nues and expenses are included in Orion’s consolidated financial statements, with appropriate adjust-
ment to reflect the interests of the Limited Partners in Orion Atlantic’s losses prior to the Exchange as
described below. Orion acquired all the remaining interests in Orion Atlantic on January 31, 1997 during
the Exchange as described below. Orion’s consolidated financial statements also include the accounts of
all other subsidiaries of Orion.

All subsidiaries of Orion (‘‘Subsidiary Guarantors’), other than inconsequential subsidiaries, have
unconditionally guaranteed the Notes (as defined below) on a joint and several basis. No restrictions
exist on the ability of Subsidiary Guarantors to pay dividends or make other distributions to Orion,
except to the extent provided by law generally (e.g., adequate capital to pay dividends under state
corporate laws).

Jurisdiction of Organization

Subsidiary Name or Incorporation

Asia Pacific Space and Communications, Ltd.............. Delaware
International Private Satellite Partners, L.P. (doing business

as Orion Atlantic, LP)............oiitiiiiiiinenen., Delaware
Orion Network Systems-Asia Pacific, Inc. (formerly known

as Orion Asia Pacific Corporation) ................... Delaware
Orion Network Systems-Europe, Inc. (formerly known as

Orion Atlantic Europe, Inc.) ..........ocvvvvvvennn... Delaware
Orion Oldco Services, Inc. (formerly known as Orion Net-

work Systems, Inc.) ......ooiiiiiiiiiiii i Delaware
OrionNet Finance Corporation ..............covveun.... Delaware
OrionNet, InC.. . oo i vttt ittt e i Delaware
Orion Network Services, Inc. (formerly known as Orion Sat-

ellite Corporation) ......ccoeverevirennnnnnnnnennnn.. Delaware
Orion Network Systems-Europe GmbH (formerly known as

Teleport Europe GmbH) .........covviviivinnnnn.... Federal Republic of Germany

Each of the Subsidiary Guarantors is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The Subsidiary
Guarantors comprise all of the direct and indirect subsidiaries of the Company (other than inconsequen-
tial subsidiaries).

Separate financial statements of the Subsidiary Guarantors are not presented because (a) such
Subsidiary Guarantors have jointly and severally guaranteed the Notes on a full and unconditional basis,
(b) the aggregate assets, liabilities, earnings and equity of the Subsidiary Guarantors are substantially
equivalent to the assets, liabilities, earnings and equity of the Company on a consolidated basis and (c)
management has determined that such information is not material to investors.
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ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1. Organization. - (Continued)

In January 1997, Orion consummated a series of transactions that are described below.

Acquisition of Orion Atlantic Limited Partnership Interests in the Exchange

On January 31, 1997, the Company acquired all of the limited partnership interests which it did not
already own in the Company’s operating subsidiary, Orion Atlantic, that owns the Orion 1 satellite.
Specifically, the Company acquired the Orion Atlantic limited partnership interests and other rights
relating thereto held by British Aerospace Communications, Inc.,, COM DEV Satellite Communications
Limited, Kingston Communications International Limited, Lockheed Martin Commercial Launch Ser-
vices, Inc.,, MCN Sat US, Inc., an affiliate of Matra Hachette, and Trans-Atlantic Satellite, Inc., an
affiliate of Nissho Iwai Corp. (collectively, the “Exchanging Partners”). The Company accounted for this
transaction as an acquisition of minority interest, and as a result, approximately $34.3 million was allo-
cated to the cost of the Orion 1 satellite and related equipment.

Pursuant to a Section 351 Exchange Agreement and Plan of Conversion (the “Exchange Agree-
ment”), the Exchanging Partners exchanged (the “Exchange”) their Orion Atlantic limited partnership
interests for 123,172 shares of a newly created class of the Company’s Series C 6% Cumulative Convert-
ible Redeemable Preferred Stock (the ““Series C Preferred Stock™). In addition, the Company acquired
certain rights held by certain of the Exchanging Partners’ to receive repayment of various advances
(aggregating approximately $41.6 million at January 31, 1997). The 123,172 shares of Series C Preferred
Stock issued in the Exchange are convertible into approximately 7 million shares of the Company’s
Common Stock. As a result of the Exchange, certain of the Exchanging Partners became principal
stockholders of the Company.

The Merger

The Exchange was conducted on a tax-free basis by means of a Merger (defined below) that was
consummated on January 31, 1997. Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, Orion Oldco Services, Inc.,
formerly known as Orion Network Systems, Inc. (“Old Orion”), formed the Company as a new Dela-
ware corporation with a certificate of incorporation, bylaws and capital structure substantially identical
in all material respects with those of Old Orion. Also pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, the Com-
pany formed a wholly owned subsidiary, Orion Merger Company, Inc. (“Orion Merger Subsidiary”).
Pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger, Orion Merger Subsidiary was merged with and into Old
Orion, and Old Orion became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger”). On January
31, 1997, the effective time of the Merger, all of the stockholders of Old Orion received stock in the
Company with substantially identical rights to the Old Orion stock they held prior to the effective time
of the Merger. Following the Merger, the Company changed its name from Orion Newco Services, Inc.
to Orion Network Systems, Inc. and the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, Orion Network Systems,
Inc. , changed its name to Orion Oldco Services, Inc.

Financings

On January 31, 1997, the Company completed a $710 million bond offering (the “Bond Offering”)
comprised of approximately $445 million of Senior Note Units, each of which consists of one 11.25%
Senior Note due 2007 (a “Senior Note”) and one Warrant to purchase 0.8463 shares of common stock,
par value $.01 per share (“Common Stock”) of the Company (a “Senior Note Warrant”), and approx-
imately $265.4 million of Senior Discount Note Units, each of which consists of one 12.5% Senior
Discount Note due 2007 (a “Senior Discount Note,” and together with the Senior Notes, the “Notes”)
and one Warrant to purchase 0.6628 shares of Common Stock of the Company (a “Senior Discount
Note Warrant, and together with the Senior Note Warrants, the *Warrants”). Interest on the Senior
Notes is payable semi-annually in cash on January 15 and July 15 of each year, commencing July 15,
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ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

1. Organization. — (Continued)

1997. The Senior Discount Notes do not pay cash interest prior to January 15, 2002. Thereafter, cash
interest will accrue until maturity at an annual rate of 12.5% payable semi annually on January 15 and
July 15 of each year, commencing July 15, 2002. The exercise price of the Warrants is $.01 per share of
Common Stock of the Company. There were 697,400 Warrants issued in connection with the Notes (See
Note 6).

On January 31, 1997, the Company also completed the sale of $60 million of its convertible junior
subordinated debentures (the “Convertible Debentures’) to two investors, British Aerospace Holdings,
Inc. (“British Aerospace”) and Matra Marconi Space UK Limited (“Matra Marconi Space”). British
Aerospace purchased $50 million of the Convertible Debentures and Matra Marconi Space purchased
$10 million of the Convertible Debentures (collectively, the “Convertible Debentures Offering,” and
together with the Bond Offering, the “Financings’’). The Convertible Debentures mature in 2012, and
bear interest at a rate of 8.75% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears solely in Common Stock of
the Company. The Convertible Debentures are subordinated to all other indebtedness of the Company,
including the Notes.

The net proceeds of the Bond Offering and Convertible Debentures Offering were used by the
Company to repay the Orion 1 Credit Facility, pre-fund the first three years of interest payments on
certain of the Notes, and will be used to build and launch two additional satellites, Orion 2 and Orion 3.

Acquisition of Teleport Europe

On March 26, 1997, Orion acquired German-based Teleport Europe GmbH (now known as Orion
Network Systems-Europe GmbH) (“Orion Europe”) a communications company specializing in private
satellite networks for voice and data services. Orion purchased the shares of Orion Europe held by the
German companies, Vebacom GmbH and RWE Telliance AG, now known as o.tel.o for approximately
$9 million. In addition, Orion acquired Orion Europe’s licenses and operating agreements to provide
satellite network services in 40 countries, including 17 countries in which Orion previously did not
provide service. The net purchase price of Orion Europe was $8.4 million and was allocated as follows:

Working capital deficit, net of cash acquired.... $(.6)

Property and equipment...................... 9.3

Other,met .. ooniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeennnnnn. (3)
$34

l

The proforma effect on net loss assuming the acquisition took place January 1, 1997 was not material.
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation Policy

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 1997, include the accounts
of Orion and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and Orion Financial Partnership (OFP), in which Orion
holds a 50% interest. The consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 1996 and
1995, include the accounts of Orion, its two wholly-owned subsidiaries OrionNet, Inc. (OrionNet) and
Orion Network Services, Inc., its former 83% owned subsidiary, Asia Pacific Space and Communications
Ltd. (Asia Pacific), the OFP, in which Orion holds a 50% interest, and Orion Atlantic, in which Orion
held a 41 2/3% ownership interest. Orion Network Services, Inc. as the general partner of Orion Atlan-
tic, exercised control of Orion Atlantic through the provisions of the partnership agreement. All signif-
icant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. In January 1997, all of the outside
interest in these entities, except for outside interests of OFP, were acquired.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Orion considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when pur-
chased to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in banks and short term invest-
ments as follows:

December 31,

1997 1996
Cash...oovvviiviiiinii i $ 2,256,356 § 2,627,477
Money market funds.................... 2,543,600 14,213,484
Commercial paper.........covvvenvnnn. 65,208,701 15,346,846

$70,008,657  $32,187,807

The commercial paper held at December 31, 1997 matures between January and March 1998.

Restricted and Segregated Assets

Restricted and segregated assets consist of the following:

December 31,
997 . 199
U.S. treasury notes. .. ....ovvevenveeennnn. $117,800,000 § —_
Commercial paper ..........oovvvnnvennn 216,696,975 —
Time deposits 22,393,000 ................ 10,000,000
Total restricted and segregated assets ... .. 356,889,975 10,000,000
Less: current portion.........coeeevenn.. (50,064,014) : —

$306,825961  $10,000,000

Included in restricted and segregated assets is $3.7 million of accrued interest at December 31, 1997.
The current portion represents interest to be paid on the Senior Notes in 1998. The commercial paper
and U.S. treasury discount notes held at December 31, 1997 mature between January and March 1998
and January 1998 and January 2000, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation expense is calculated using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Satellite and related equipment........... 10.5years
Telecommunications equipment .......... 2-Tyears
Furniture and computer equipment ....... 2-Tyears

Costs incurred in connection with the construction and successful deployment of the Orion 1 satel-
lite and related equipment are capitalized. Such costs include direct contract cost, allocated indirect
costs, launch costs, launch insurance, construction period interest and the present value of satellite
incentive payments. Similar costs for Orion 2 and Orion 3 are included in “Satellite construction in
progress.” Orion began depreciating the Orion 1 satellite over its estimated useful life commencing on
the date of operational delivery in orbit (January 20, 1995).
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2. Summary of Significant Aécounting Policies — (Continued)
Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs related to the Financings include $22.6 million in fees paid to an invest-
ment banker and are being amortized over the period the debt is expected to be outstanding. Accumu-
lated amortization at December 31, 1997 and 1996 was $2,289,925 and $9,122,000, respectively. Deferred
financing costs of $10.5 million relating to the Orion 1 Credit Facility were expensed in January 1997 in
connection with the Financings and are included in the caption “Extraordinary loss on extinguishment
of debt”.

Other Assets

Other assets consist principally of FCC license application costs, organization costs and goodwill.
The Company amortizes the FCC license application costs related to Orion 1 over the estimated useful
life of the satellite. Organization costs are amortized over five years. Goodwill is primarily amortized
over the remaining useful life of Orion 1. Accumulated amortization at December 31, 1997 and 1996 was
$6,214,359 and $3,150,000, respectively.

Other assets, net of amortization at December 31, 1997 and 1996, consist of the following:

December 31,
7 1996
Goodwill ............. .ot $20,331,878 $1,412,546
Note receivable ................. 3,038,901 —
FCC license application costs ..... 1,781,097 1,639,054
Other........cooviiiiinn, 2,026,933 2,200,702
$27,178,809 $5,252,302

Foreign Currency Translation

Results of operations for foreign entities, primarily the Company’s Orion Network Systems-Europe
GmbH subsidiary, are translated using average exchange rates during the period. Assets and liabilities
are translated to U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. The resulting
translation adjustments are reflected in stockholders’ equity (deficit).

Interest Rate Modification Agreement

Orion entered into an interest-rate swap and cap agreement to modify the interest characteristics of
the Orion 1 Credit Facility from a floating to a fixed-rate basis. This agreement involved the receipt of
floating rate amount in exchange for fixed-rate interest payments over the life of the agreement without
an exchange of the underlying principal amount. The differential paid or received was accrued as inter-
est rates changed and was recognized as an adjustment to interest expense. The fair value of the swap
agreement was not recognized in the financial statements. This agreement was terminated in January
1997 in connection with the Financings discussed in Note 1. No such agreements were in place at
December 31, 1997.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized as earned in the period in which telecommunications and related services are
provided.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ~ (Continued)

The following summarizes the Company’s domestic and foreign revenues for the years ended De-
cember 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995:

Year Ended December 31,

1597 1996 1995
Revenues from unaffiliated customers
United States ....coovrvinvnennnsnns $30,927,234 $21,261,980 § 8,528,736
BUIOPE. . oo vt i 37,720,990 14,571,979 8,056,146
Revenues from related parties............ 4,092,407 6,013,333 5,699,000
Total services revenue. .. ...oovvvevnn.en. $72,740,631 $41,847292 $22,283,882

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future consequences of
temporary differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted
tax rates that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse.

Following is a summary of components of deferred taxes at December 31, 1997 and 1996 (in thousands):

December 31,
1997 199

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforward .......... $ 61,648 $ 29,535
Accrued discount on Senior Discount Notes 11,917 —_
Amortization of intangibles.............. 2,947 466
16117 S 3,385 2,566

79,897 32,567
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation.......ovvvevveennenerianns (16,289) (299)
1 14 11 (741 (124)

(17,030) (423)
Net deferred tax asset...........coovuenn 62,867 32,144
Valuation allowance .................... (62,867) (32,144)
Net deferred tax asset, after valuation al-

IOWANCE v iivriinseeneirnnernanennns $ — $ —

At December 31, 1997, Orion has approximately $162 million in net operating loss carryforwards
which expire at varying dates from 2004 through 2012. The use of these loss carryforwards may be
limited under the Internal Revenue Code as a result of ownership changes experienced by Orion. Due
to uncertainty regarding its ability to realize the benefits of such net operating loss carryforwards and
other net deferred tax assets, the Company has established a valuation allowance for the full amount of
these net deferred tax assets.

Net Loss Per Common Share

Net loss per common share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstand-
ing during the period. In 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 128,
Earnings per Share. Statement 128 replaced the calculation of primary and fully diluted earnings per
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

share with basic and diluted earnings per share. Unlike primary earnings per share, basic earnings per
share excludes any dilutive effects of options, warrants and convertible securities. The effect of such
securities for all periods presented is anti-dilutive, and therefore has been excluded from the calculation
of diluted earnings per share. The adoption of FASB 128 had no impact on the per share amounts
previously presented.

Statements of Cash Flows
Non-cash investing and financing activities and supplemental cash flow information includes:

Year Ended December 31,

1997 1996 1995
Property and equipment financed by capital leases $ — $ 482452 $ 2,850,766
Preferred stock dividend, net of forfeitures .. ... 6,034,436 1,369,665 1,329,007
Conversion of redeemable preferred stock to

COMIMON SIOCK .. vvivvevnernnierecnnnnanss 38,845,493 804,945 9,000
Conversion of subordinated debentures to com-

MORSIOCK ..o vttt i 10,291,667 — —
Premium on satellite due to redemption of L.P

Interest. .. .o vtii it i e — —_ 3,066,925
Redemption of STET interest with notes payable — — 8,000,000
Reduction in amount due to satellite manufac-

141 E — — 485,799
Satellite incentive obligation capitalized ........ — — 14,816,406
Acquisition of Teleport Europe, net of cash ac-

quired:

Working capital deficit, net of cash acquired . . 683,567 — —

Property and equipment.................... (9,346,584) —_ —

Other,met.......oiiiii i 288,172 — —
Net cash used to acquire Teleport Europe...... (8,374,845) e —
Issuance of Series C preferred stock ........... 94,000,000 o —_
Issuance of common stock for preferred stock

dividend...........ooiiiiiiii i 2,070,462 — —
Issuance of common stock and warrants ....... 13,406,631 300,000 —
Interest paid during the year.................. 35,572,722 20,615,316 11,312,875
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the finan-
cial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.

3. Orion Atlantic

Orion Atlantic is a Delaware limited partnership formed to provide international private commu-
nications networks and basic transponder capacity and capacity services (including ancillary ground
services) to businesses and institutions with trans-Atlantic and intra-European needs. The business was
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organized by Orion Network Services, the general partner of Orion Atlantic. The principal purposes of
Orion Atlantic was to finance the construction, launch and operation of up to two telecommunications
satellites in geosynchronous orbit over the Atlantic Ocean and to establish a multinational sales and
service organization. Eight international corporations, including Orion, invested a total of $90 million in
equity as limited partners in Orion Atlantic. Orion Atlantic through January 1997, was financed by a
credit facility which provided up to $251 million for the first satellite from a syndicate of major interna-
tional banks led by Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A. In addition to their equity investments, the Limited
Partners had agreed to lease capacity on the satellites up to an aggregate $155 million and had entered
into additional contingent capacity lease contracts (“contingent call’”) up to an aggregate $271 million, as
support for repayment of the senior debt. The firm capacity leases and contingent calls were payable
over a seven-year period after the Orion 1 satellite was placed in service. In July 1995, January and July
1996 the Limited Partners (excluding the Company) paid $7.6 million, $18.0 million and $12.1 million,
respectively, pursuant to the contingent calls. As discussed in Note 1, in January 1997, the Company
acquired all of the limited partnership interests it did not already own in Orion Atlantic.

Orion 1 — The fixed base price of Orion 1, excluding obligations relating to satellite performance,
aggregated $227 million. In addition to the fixed base price, the contract required payments in lieu of a
further contract price increase, aggregating approximately $44 million through 2006. Such payments are
due, generally, if 24 out of 34 satellite transponders are operating satisfactorily. Shortly after acceptance
of the satellite in January 1995, the Company filed a warranty claim with the satellite manufacturer
relating to one transponder that was not performing in accordance with contract specifications. In Au-
gust 1995, Orion Atlantic received a one time refund of $2.75 million which was applied as a mandatory
prepayment to the senior notes payable - banks. '

The Company believes that since Orion 1 is properly deployed and operational, based upon industry
data and experience, payment of the obligation mentioned above is highly probable and the Company
capitalized the present value of this obligation of approximately $14.8 million as part of the cost of the
satellite. Payment of amounts due under this obligation were delayed until payment was permitted under the
senior notes payable — banks. The present value was estimated by discounting the obligation at 14% over
the expected term, assuming payment of the incentives begins upon expiration of the senior notes payable —
banks in 2002.

Redemption of STET Partnership Interest; Issuance of New Interest to Orion. — In November 1995
Orion Atlantic redeemed the limited partnership interest held by STET (the “STET Redemption”) for $11.5
million, including $3.5 million of cash and $8.0 million in 12%, promissory notes due through 1997. STET's
firm and contingent capacity leases remained in place until released by the Banks under the Orion 1 Credit
Facility. STET’s existing contractual arrangements with Orion Atlantic were modified in a number of re-
spects, including (i) a reduction of approximately $3.5 million in amounts due by Orion Atlantic to Telespazio
S.p.A., an affiliate of STET, over a ten-year period under contracts relating to the construction of Orion 2,
back-up tracking, telemetry and command services through a facility in Italy and engineering consulting
services, (ii) the establishment of ground operations and distribution agreements between Orion Atlantic
and Telecom Italia, a subsidiary of STET, relating to Italy, and the granting to Telecom Italia of exclusive
marketing rights relating to Italy for a period ending December 1998 conditioned upon Telecom Italia
achieving certain sales quotas, and (iii) canceling exclusive ground operations and sales representation agree-
ments between Orion Atlantic and STET (or its affiliates) relating to Eastern Europe.

Orion Atlantic funded the STET Redemption by selling a new limited partnership interest to Orion
for $8 million (including $3.5 million in cash and $4.5 million in 12% promissory notes due through
1997). In connection with the STET redemption, Orion agreed to indemnify Telecom Italia for pay-
ments which were made in July 1995 of $950,000 and which would be made in the future under its firm
and contingent capacity agreements with Orion Atlantic and posted a $10 million letter of credit to
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support such indemnity. The Company accounted for this transaction as an acquisition of a minority
interest and, as a result, approximately $3.1 million was allocated to the cost of the Orion 1 satellite and
related equipment.

During 1995, Orion Atlantic entered into agreements with certain Limited Partners (including the
Company) under which the participating Limited Partners voluntarily gave up their rights to receive
capacity under their firm capacity agreements through January 1996. The participating Limited Partners
continued to make payments for such capacity but have the right to receive refunds from Orion Atlantic
out of cash available after operating costs and payments under the Credit Facility. At December 31,
1996, Orion Atlantic received $27.7 million (excluding payments from the Company) under the firm
capacity agreements subject to refund, which amounts are included in “Other liabilities.” In addition,
services revenue included $4.1 million, $6.0 million and $5.7 million in 1997, 1996 and 1995 from Limited
Partners pursuant to the firm capacity commitments, not subject to refund. In connection with the
Exchange described in Note 1, such rights were acquired by the Company.

4. Commitments and Contingencies

Orion 1 — In November 1995, a portion of the Orion 1 satellite experienced an anomaly that
resulted in a temporary service interruption, lasting approximately two hours, in the dedicated capacity
serving the European portion of Orion Atlantic’s services. Full service to all affected customers was
restored using redundant equipment on the satellite. The Company believes, based on the data and the
Telesat Report (issued by Telesat Canada, independent engineering consultants dated November 14,
1995), that, because the redundant component is functioning fully in accordance with specifications and
the performance record of similar components is strong, the anomalous behavior is unlikely to affect the
expected performance of the satellite over its useful life. Furthermore, there has been no effect on the
Company’s ability to provide services to customers. However, in the event that the currently operating
component fails, Orion 1 would experience a significant loss of usable capacity. In such event, while the
Company would be entitled to insurance proceeds of approximately $47 million and could lease replace-
ment capacity and function as a reseller with respect to such capacity, the loss of capacity would have a
material adverse effect on the Company.

Orion 2 — In July 1996, the Company signed a contract with Matra Marconi Space for the construc-
tion and launch of Orion 2 (which was amended and restated in January 1997) and in February 1997
commenced construction of that satellite. The contract provides for delivery in orbit of Orion 2 by June
1999, for a firm fixed price of $201 million, excluding launch insurance and incentive payments. Orion 2
will expand the Company’s European coverage and extend coverage to portions of the Commonwealth
of Independent States, Latin America and the Middle East.

Orion 3 — In January 1997, the Company entered into a satellite procurement contract with Hughes
Space for the construction and launch of Orion 3, construction of which commenced in December 1996, The
contract provides for delivery in orbit of Orion 3 by December 1998, for a firm fixed price of $208 million,
excluding launch insurance and incentive payments. Orion 3 will cover broad areas of the Asia Pacific region
including China, Japan, Korea, Southeast Asia, Australia, New Zealand, Eastern Russia and Hawaii.

In November 1996, Orion entered into a contract with DACOM Corp. (“DACOM”), a Korean
communications company, under which DACOM will lease eight dedicated transponders on Orion 3 for
13 years, in return for approximately $89 million, which is payable over a period from December 1996
through six months following the lease commencement date for the transponders (which is scheduled to
occur by January 1999). DACOM is to deposit funds with Orion in accordance with a milestone sched-
ule. As of December 31, 1997, Orion had received $22.25 million from DACOM. This amount is in-
cluded in “Other Liabilities”. Orion maintains a $22.25 million letter of credit which will be released on
August 1, 1998. Orion has an obligation to maintain a letter of credit for seven months beginning on the
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lease commencement date in the amount of $44.75 million. Prior to launch, payments are subject to
refund pending the successful launch and commencement of commercial operation of Orion 3, DACOM
maintains a $54.75 million letter of credit securing substantially all of DACOM’s remaining payments.

Litigation — On November 9, 1996, Orion and Skydata Corporation (*“Skydata”) executed a letter with
respect to the settlement in full of pending litigation and arbitration related to a patent dispute. As part of
the settlement, Skydata granted Orion (and its affiliates) an unrestricted, world-wide paid-up license to
make, have made, use or sell products or methods under the patent and all other corresponding continuation
and reissue patents. Orion is to pay Skydata $437,000 over a period of two years as part of the settlement.

Other — Orion has entered into operating leases, principally for office space. Rent expense was
$1,312,000, $915,000 and $735,000 during the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

1908 Lt it e e $1,588,800
19099 .ttt i i ettt e 1,283,100
2000 .. i i e e i et 185,100
72,0 93,500
2002 i i e e i e 46,000
Thereafter .....cvviiiiriniienrennrenenannnn 552,500

$3,749,000

5. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt at December 31, 1997 and 1996 consists of the following:

December 31,
1997 1996

Senior notes (net of unamortized discount |

of $49 million).........covvvrnvnnnnn. $440,099,914 § —
Senior discount notes (maturity value of {

$484 million). ...l 292,336,605 —
Convertible junior subordinated debentures 50,000,000 . —
Senior notes payable to banks ........... — 207,714,842
Notes payable - TT&C Facility........... 6,021,601 6,956,624
Satellite incentive obligations............. 6,478,533 22,373,746
Notes payable - STET................... — 5,550,600
Notes payable - limited partners.......... — 8,050,000
Other .....ooviiiiiiiniiineeriiennnsnns 2,140,096 2,566,687

Total long-termdebt.................. 797,076,749 253,211,899
Less:currentportion.............cc00uunn 6,406,143 34,975,060

Long-term debt less current portion..... $790,670,606  $218,236.839

Total interest (including commitment fees and amortization of deferred financing costs) incurred for
the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 was $91.1, $27.8, and $26.0 million, respectively.
Capitalized interest for 1997 was $7.3 million. Aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt consist of
the following (in thousands):
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1908 e $ 6,406,143
1990 1,347,198
2000 .. 1,177,692
2008 . 1,252,335
2002 1,582,997
Thereafter......covviineiiin ey 785,310,384

197076749

Senior Notes and Senior Discount Notes — On January 31, 1997, the Company completed a $710
million bond offering (the “Bond Offering”) comprised of approximately $445 million of Senior Note
Units, each of which consists of one 11.25% Senior Note due 2007 (a “Senior Note”) and one Warrant
to purchase 0.8463 shares of common stock, par value $.01 per share (“Common Stock™) of the Com-
pany (a “Senior Note Warrant’"), and approximately $265.4 million of Senior Discount Note Units, each
of which consists of one 12.5% Senior Discount Note due 2007 (a ““Senior Discount Note,” and together
with the Senior Notes, the “Notes”) and one Warrant to purchase 0.6628 shares of Common Stock of
the Company (a “Senior Discount Note Warrant and together with the Senior Note Warrants, the
“Warrants”). Interest on the Senior Notes is payable semi-annually in cash on J anuary 15 and July 15 of
each year, commencing July 15, 1997. The Senior Discount Notes do not pay cash interest prior to
January 15, 2002. Thereafter, cash interest accrues until maturity at an annual rate of 12.5% payable
semi-annually on January 15, and July 15 of each year, commencing July 15, 2002. The exercise price for
the Warrants is $.01 per share of Common Stock of the Company. The Company made interest pay-
ments of $22,806,250 and $25,031,250 in July 1997 and January 1998 on the Senior Notes. The indentures
supporting the Senior Notes and the Senior Discount Notes contain certain covenants which, among
other things, restrict distributions to stockholders of the Company, the repurchase of equity interests in
the Company and the making of certain other investments and restricted payments, the incurrence of
additional indebtedness by the Company and its restricted subsidiaries , the creation of liens, certain
asset sales, transaction with affiliates and related parties, and mergers and consolidations. The Company
is in compliance with the requirements of such indentures.

Convertible Junior Subordinated Debentures — On January 31, 1997, in connection with the
Financings discussed in Note 1, the Company completed the sale of $60 million of its convertible junior
subordinated debentures (the “Convertible Debentures”) to two investors, British Aerospace Holdings,
Inc. (“British Aerospace”) and Matra Marconi Space UK Limited (“Matra Marconi Space’). British
Aerospace purchased $50 million of the Convertible Debentures and Matra Marconi Space purchased
$10 million of the Convertible. The Convertible Debentures mature in 2012, and bear interest at a rate
of 8.75% per annum to be paid semi-annually in arrears solely in Common Stock of the Company. The
Convertible Debentures are subordinated to all other indebtedness of the Company, including the Notes.
Matra Marconi Space converted their $10 million of Convertible Debentures and accrued interest into
735,292 shares of common stock in December 1997. Subsequent to year end, British Aerospace con-
verted their $50 million of Convertible Debentures and accrued interest into approximately 3.6 million
shares of common stock.

Senior Notes Payable to Banks - The senior notes payable to banks outstanding under a credit
facility prior to repayment as described below, bore interest at 1.75% over the LIBOR. The Company
entered into agreements with Chase Manhattan Bank, N.A. ( “Chase” ) for interest rate hedging ar-
rangements which fixed the maximum interest rate through November 1995 at 11.54%. Thereafter a self
funding interest rate cap agreement was in place relating to a notional amount declining every six
months from $150 million effective November 30, 1995 to $15.6 million effective March 31, 2001. Under
the terms of the cap agreement, when LIBOR equaled or exceeded 5.5% Orion Atlantic paid Chase a
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fee equal to 3.3% per annum of the notional amount and received a payment from Chase in an amount
equal to the difference between the actual LIBOR rate and 5.5% on the notional amount. In January
1997, the Company used the net proceeds of the Bond Offering and the Convertible Debenture Offering
to repay the Orion 1 Credit Facility and terminated the hedging arrangement. The loss on termination of
the hedging arrangement of $5.3 million is included in “Extraordinary loss on extinguishment of debt.”

Note Payable — TT&C Facility — In June 1995 upon acceptance of the TT&C Facility, the Com-
pany refinanced $9.3 million from General Electric Credit Corporation as a seven-year term loan, pay-
able monthly. The interest rate is fixed at 13.5%. The TT&C debt is secured by the TT&C Facility, the
Satellite Control System Contract and Orion Atlantic’s leasehold interest in the TT&C Facility land.
The TT&C financing agreement contains customary representations, warranties and covenants regarding
certain activities of the Company.

Satellite Incentive Obligations — The obligations relating to satellite performance have been re-
corded at the present value (discounted at 14%, the Company’s estimated incremental borrowing rate
for unsecured financing) of the required payments commencing at the originally scheduled maturity of
the senior notes payable to banks and continuing through 2006. Under the terms of the construction
contract, payment of the obligation is delayed until such time as payment is permitted under the senior
notes payable to banks. During 1997, payments aggregating $18.6 million were made pursuant to this
obligation.

Notes Payable — STET — In connection with the STET Redemption, the Company issued $8
million of promissory notes bearing interest at 12% per annum. Payments were due as follows: $2.5
million plus accrued interest paid on December 31, 1996; $3.5 million plus accrued interest on the earlier
of December 31, 1997 or the refinancing of the senior notes payable to banks; and the remaining $2.0
million in monthly installments of $0.2 million plus accrued interest beginning January 1997. At Decem-
ber 31, 1997, the $8 million promissory notes issued in connection with the STET Redemption have been
repaid.

Notes Payable — Limited Partners — In January 1997, the Company issued Series C Convertible
Preferred Stock in exchange for the Preferred Participation Units (PPUs) aggregating $8.1 million due
to certain former Limited Partners for development of Orion Atlantic’s network services business. Hold-
ers of PPUs earned interest on aggregate amounts drawn at the rate of 30% per annum.

Interest payable at December 31, 1996 was $5.9 million and is included in “Other liabilities”.

6. Redeemable Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Equity
The Company has authorized 1,000,000 shares of $0.01 par value preferred stock.

Redeemable Preferred Stock

In June 1994, Orion issued 11,500 shares of Series A 8% Cumulative Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock at $1,000 per share and granted an option to purchase an additional 3,833 shares of
similar preferred stock at $1,000 per share. Dividends on preferred stock accrue at 8% per year and are
payable as and when declared. Orion may redeem the preferred stock at the amount invested plus
accrued and unpaid dividends. Upon such a redemption, the preferred stockholders would receive a
warrant to acquire at $8.50 per share the number of shares of common stock into which the preferred
stock was convertible. The 11,500 shares issued are convertible into 1,352,941 shares of common stock
($8.50 per share). Upon conversion any accrued and unpaid dividends are forfeited. Orion may require
conversion of the preferred stock if certain conditions are met. After Orion issued preferred stock
(along with warrants and options to make an additional investment) in June 1994, the Directors and
affiliates of Directors who purchased common stock in December 1993 and the institutions and other
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investors who purchased common stock in June 1994 each exercised its right to receive preferred stock
(along with warrants and options to make an additional investment) in exchange for the common stock
previously acquired and Orion issued an aggregate of 3,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock and
related options for 1,000 shares to such persons and entities. The 3,000 shares issued are convertible into
352,941 shares of common stock ($8.50 per share). Through December 31, 1997, 7,567 shares of pre-
ferred stock were converted into 890,235 shares of common stock. The remaining 6,933 shares outstand-
ing are convertible into 815,647 shares of common stock at December 31, 1997,

The preferred stock has a liquidation preference equal to the amount invested plus accrued and
unpaid dividends. Preferred stockholders are entitled to vote on an as-converted basis and have the right
to put the stock to Orion upon a merger, change of control or sale of substantially all assets at the
greater of liquidation value or fair value. The put expires upon the completion of a qualified public
equity offering, as defined. If the preferred stock is not previously redeemed or converted to common
stock, the preferred stockholders also have the right to put the stock to Orion as follows: 33 1/3%
beginning in June 1999; 66 2/3% beginning in June 2000; and 100% beginning in June 2001.

In June 1995, certain Directors, affiliates of Directors, and certain holders of Series A Preferred
Stock purchased 4,483 shares of Series B Preferred Stock for approximately $4.5 million. This purchase
was pursuant to an option granted in June 1995 to purchase $1 of preferred stock similar to the Series A
Preferred Stock for each $3 of Series A Preferred Stock purchased in June 1994, except that such similar
preferred stock would be convertible at any time with Common Stock at a price within a range of $10.20
to $17.00 per share of common stock based upon when the option is exercised. The Series B Preferred
Stock has rights, designations and preferences substantially similar to those of the Series A Preferred
Stock, and is subject to similar covenants, except that the Series B Preferred Stock is convertible into
439,510 shares of Common Stock at an initial price of $10.20 per share, subject to certain anti-dilution
adjustments, and purchases of Series B Preferred Stock did not result in the purchaser receiving any
rights to purchase additional preferred stock. Through December 31, 1997, 2,424 shares of preferred
stock were converted into 237,647 shares of common stock. The remaining 2,059 shares outstanding are
convertible into 201,862 shares of common stock at December 31, 1997.

In January 1997, Orion issued 123,172 shares of Series C Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock
to British Aerospace Communications, Inc., COM DEV Satellite Communications Limited, Kingston
Communications International Limited, Lockheed Martin Commercial Launch Services, Inc., MCN Sat
US, Inc., and Trans-Atlantic Satellite, Inc. in exchange for their Orion Atlantic partnership interests.
Dividends on the preferred stock accrue at 6% per year and are distributable in the Company’s common
stock calculated based on the market price of such stock under a formula provided in the Certificate of
Designations. The shares are convertible into approximately 7 million shares ($17.50 per share) of the
Company’s common stock. Through December 31, 1997, 40,531 shares of preferred stock, including
dividends, were converted into approximately 2.4 million shares of common stock. Series C Cumulative
Preferred Stock is recorded net of deferred offering costs of approximately $3.3 million. The Series C
Cumulative Preferred Stock is subject to mandatory redemption at par value in 25 years. The difference
between in carrying value and par value is being accreted over such period.

The preferred stock has a liquidation preference equal to the amount invested plus accrued and
unpaid dividends. Preferred stockholders are entitled to vote on an as-converted basis and have the right
to put the stock to Orion upon a merger, change of control or sale of substantially all assets at the
greater of liquidation value or fair value.

Stockholders’ Equity

1987 Employee Stock Option Plan - Under the 1987 Employee Stock Option Plan, 1,470,588 shares
of common stock are reserved for issuance upon exercise of options granted. Shares of common stock
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may generally be purchased under this plan at prices not less than the fair market value, as determined
by the Board of Directors, on the date the option is granted.

Stock options outstanding at December 31:

1997 1996 1995
Range of exercise price .......... $816-1229 $816-12.24 $544-12.24
QOutstanding at beginning of year.. 911,663 971,469 804,056
Granted duringyear............. 400,670 122,750 380,069
Exercised...........coooivviinnnn (81,383) (37,629) (60,928)
Canceled .........cvviiiennnanens (56,640) (144,927) (151,728)
Qutstanding at end of year ....... 1,174,310 911,663 971,469

In November 1993, stock options for 95,588 shares of common stock were granted to key executives
which may be exercised only upon the achievement of certain business and financial objectives. At
December 31, 1995, the executives had earned the right to exercise 40,441 of these options based on the
achievement of such objectives. The remaining options were canceled during 1996.

Stock options vest annually over a one to five-year period. All options are exercisable up to seven
years from the date of grant. The Company’s 1987 Employee Stock Option Plan expired in 1997. No
further shares are available for grant under this plan. There were 506,803 and 429,265 options exercis-
able at December 31, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

In July 1996, the Company granted, subject to shareholder approval, the Chairman of the Executive
Committee 100,000 options at $9.83 per share. These options vested as follows, 50,000 on January 17,
1997 and 50,000 upon successful completion of either a refinancing of the Orion 1 satellite, financing for
construction, launch and insurance for Orion 2 or Orion 3 or a substantial acquxsmon or relationship
with a strategic partner. These requirements were met in January 1997.

Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan — In 1996, Orion adopted a non-employee director
stock option plan. Under this plan, 380,000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance. During
1997, there were 80,000 options granted pursuant to this plan at $9.60 per share. At December 31, 1997,
aggregate options outstanding pursuant to this plan totaled 270,000, of which, 180,000 were exercisable
at prices ranging from $8.49 to $12.53 per share.

1997 Employee Stock Option Plan - In 1997, Orion adopted a second stock option plan. Under this
plan, as amended, 1,300,000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance upon exercise of options
granted. Shares of common stock may be purchased under this plan at prices not less than the fair value
as determined by the Board of Directors, on the date the option is granted.

Compensation expense relating to these plans was not significant.
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Stock options outstanding at December 31:

97
Range of exercise price ...................... $9.30 - 17.06
Outstanding at beginning of year.............. —
Granted duringyear...........ccoiiivvnnnnnn 556,000
Exercised..........oooiiiiiii i, —
Canceled .......ciiiiiiiiii i {4,000)
Outstanding atend of year ................... 552,000

There were 62,500 options exercisable at December 31, 1997.

The Company has elected to continue to follow Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and related Interpretations in accounting for
its employee stock based award programs, because the alternative fair value accounting provided for
under FASB Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”) which is
effective for awards after January 1, 1996 requires use of option valuation models that were not devel-
oped for use in valuing employee stock options. Under APB 25, when the exercise price of the employee
award equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, as has been the case
historically with the Company’s awards, no compensation expense is recognized.

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by SFAS 123, and
has been determined as if the Company had accounted for its stock options under the fair value method
of that statement. The fair value of these options was estimated at the date of the grant using a Black-
Scholes valuation model with the following assumptions:

1997 1996 ' 1998
Risk-free interest rate............ 6.5% 6.5% 6.5%
Expected dividend yield.......... 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected life of option........... 6.5 years 5.8 years 5.8 years
Volatility of the Company’s stock . 69% 68% 68%

For purposes of adjusted pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized
to expense over the option’s vesting period. The effect of applying SFAS 123 on pro forma net loss is not
necessarily representative of the effects on reported net loss for future years due to, among other things,
(1) the vesting period of the stock options and the (2) fair value of additional stock options in future
years. The Company’s adjusted pro forma information for the years ended December 31, are as follows:

197 199 1995
(Net loss in thousands)
Adjusted pro forma net loss.............. $(110,703) $(28,031) $(27,306
Adjusted pro forma net loss per share..... $ $(10.03) $ (268 $§ (311

401(k) Profit Sharing Plan — In September 1996, Orion amended the 401(k) profit sharing plan.
Under this plan, 100,000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance as the Company’s discretion-
ary match of employee contributions. The Company’s matching contributions may be made in either
cash or in the equivalent amount of the Company’s common stock. During 1997, the Company issued
11,286 shares for the 1996 plan year.

67



ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

6. Redeemable Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Equity ~ (Consinued)

Stock Purchase Plan — In September 1996, Orion adopted an employee stock purchase plan. Under
this plan, 500,000 shares of common stock are reserved for issuance. Shares of common stock are pur-
chased under this plan through payroll deduction. The purchase price of each share of common stock
purchased under the plan will be 85% of the fair market value of the common stock on the measure-
ment date. During 1997, the Company issued 27,731 shares pursuant to the Plan,

Stock Warrants - In November 1996, Orion granted 50,000 warrants to DACOM to purchase shares
of common stock at $14 per share. The warrants are exercisable for a six month period beginning six
months after the commencement date, as defined in the Joint Investment Agreement, and ending one
year after the commencement date and will terminate at that time or at any time the Joint Investment
Agreement is terminated. The fair value of the warrants at the date of issue was $300,000 and was
estimated using a Black Scholes valuation model.

Warrants outstanding at December 31:

1997 199 1995
Range of exercise price.................. $0.01 - 14.00 $9.79 - 14.00 $9.79 - 12.79
Outstanding at beginning of year ......... 142,115 553,768 735,769
Granted duringyear .................... 697,400 50,000 .
Exercised .........c0iviiiiiiiiinnnnnn. (96,159) — —
Canceled ...........ooiiiiiiiiiiinnn, (2,806) (461,653) (182,001)
Outstanding at end of year............... 740,550 142,115 553,768

There were 690,550 and 92,115 warrants exercisable at December 31, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

The holders of preferred stock also hold warrants to purchase 1,017,509 shares of common stock at
the conversion price of such preferred stock. These warrants do not become exercisable unless Orion
exercises its right to repurchase the preferred stock at the liquidation value, plus accrued and unpaid
dividends.

In January 1997, the Company issued Senior Note Warrants and Senior Discount Note Warrants to
acquire 376,608 and 320,792 shares of common stock, respectively at $.01 per share in connection with
the Bond Offering. The warrants were not exercisable prior to six months after the closing date of the
Bond Offering and became separately transferable from the Notes six months from date of issuance.
The estimated fair value of the warrants aggregating $9.6 million was allocated $5.2 million to Senior
Notes and $4.4 million to Senior Discount Notes as debt discount. At December 31, 1997, 6,850 warrants
were converted into 5,797 shares of common stock.

Shares Reserved for Issuance - The Company has 14,036,809 shares of common stock at December
31, 1997 reserved for issuance upon conversion of debentures and preferred stock, exercise of outstand-
ing stock options and warrants, and common stock issued under the stock purchase and 401(k) profit
sharing plans.

7. Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Other than amounts due under the Senior Notes and Senior Discount Notes, Orion believes that
the carrying amount reported in the balance sheet of its other financial assets and liabilities approxi-
mates their fair value at December 31, 1997. The fair value of the Company’s Senior Notes and Senior
Discount was estimated to be approximately $511.8 million and $377.5 million, respectively. Based upon
the conversion value at December 31, 1997 of the underlying common stock, the fair value of the
Company’s redeemable preferred stock was approximately $102.8 million.
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8. Pending Acquisition of the Company By Loral

On October 7, 1997, Orion, Loral Space & Communications Ltd. (“Loral”) and Loral Satellite
Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Loral (“Merger Sub”), entered into an Agreement and Plan
of Merger (as amended on February 11, 1998, the “Merger Agreement”), pursuant to which Merger Sub
will merge with and into the Company, with the Company being the surviving corporation and thereby
becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of Loral (the “Loral Merger™).

The Merger Agreement provides that (i) each share of Common Stock, excluding treasury shares
and shares owned by Loral or its subsidiaries, will be converted into and exchanged for the right to
receive the number of fully paid and nonassessable shares of common stock, par value $.01 per share, of
Loral (“Loral Common Stock”) equal to the Exchange Ratio (as described below), (ii) each share of the
Company’s Series A 8% Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series A Preferred
Stock”), Series B 8% Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B Preferred
Stock” and together with the Series A Preferred Stock, the “Senior Preferred Stock”) and Series C
Preferred Stock (the Series C Preferred Stock and Senior Preferred Stock are hereinafter referred to as
the “Senior Preferred Stock’) will be converted into and exchanged for the right to receive the number
of fully paid and nonassessable shares of Loral Common Stock equal to the Exchange Ratio multiplied
by the number of shares of Common Stock into which such share of Preferred Stock was convertible
immediately prior to the Effective Time of the Loral Merger, (iii) each outstanding stock option to
purchase shares of Orion Common Stock will be converted into an option to acquire the number of
shares of Loral Common Stock equal to the Exchange Ratio multiplied by the number of shares of
Common Stock for which such option was exercisable, and (iv) each outstanding warrant to purchase
shares of Orion Common Stock will be converted into a warrant to acquire the number of shares of
Loral Common Stock equal to the Exchange Ratio multiplied by the number of shares of Common
Stock for which such warrant was exercisable.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Exchange Ratio is determined as follows:

(i) if the average of the volume-weighted average trading prices of Loral Common Stock for
the twenty consecutive trading days on which trading of Loral Common Stock occurs ending the
tenth trading day immediately prior to the closing date for the Loral Merger (the “Determination
Price”) is less than $24.458 but greater than $16.305, the Exchange Ratio is the quotient obtained by
dividing $17.50 by the Determination Price,

(ii) if the Determination Price is equal to or greater than $24.458, the Exchange Ratio is
0.71553 and

(iii) if the Determination Price is equal to or less than $16.305, the Exchange Ratio is 1.07329.

A meeting of Orion’s shareholders has been scheduled for March 20, 1998 to vote to approve the
Loral Merger. The Company expects the Loral Merger to close following a favorable shareholder vote,
however, there can be no assurance that the Loral Merger will be consummated. Although not a condi-
tion of the Loral Merger, Orion intends to seek an Internal Revenue Service ruling as to eligibility for a
tax-free exchange.

In the event the Loral Merger is completed, the Company will be obligated to make an offer to
purchase all outstanding Senior and Senior Discount Notes (the “Notes”) at a purchase price equal to
101% of their principal or accreted value, plus accrued and unpaid interest therein to the repurchase
date. Since the Notes have traded in recent periods at prices above 101% of their principal amount, the
Company does not anticipate that the holders of a material principal amount of the Notes will accept the
repurchase offer.

In connection with the Merger Agreement, certain principal stockholders of Orion and members of
Orion’s management have agreed to vote in favor of the Loral Merger and have granted to Loral the
right to purchase their securities in Orion for a price equal to the Loral Merger consideration under
certain circumstances.
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9, Condensed Financial Information of Orion

Presented below are condensed balance sheets of Orion (parent company only basis) at December
31, 1997 and 1996. All material contingencies, obligations and guarantees of Orion have been separately
disclosed in the preceding notes to the financial statements.

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS OF ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.

December 31,
1997 1996
ASSETS
Current assets;
Cash and cash equivalents.................. $ — $ 26,564,562
Restricted assets. ........ccovviininnnnenees 50,064,014 —
Receivable from Orion Atlantic............. —_ 253,088
Othercurrent assets .........ccovvevnvennnnn e 766,784
Total current assets.......covvvnnvenncens 50,064,014 27,584,434
Restricted and segregated assets............... 284,432,961 e
Investment in and advances to subsidiaries ..... 460,571,744 (12,088,208)
Other assets .....vveieriiirneieenrennaeeanns 42,021,096 10,590,071
Total 8SSetS. . .uvveinvieiiiiiierensronensns $837,089,815 $ 26,086,297
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’
DEFICIT
Current liabilities:
Notes and interest payable to Orion Atlantic . $ — $ 2327427
Interestpayable............ocoiiiiiinenn 24,768,229 —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. ..... — 2,828,616
Total current liabilities................... 24,768,229 5,156,043
Longtermdebt ..........cooiiiiiiiiinnnn. 782,436,519 7,053
Other liabilities ..........ciieriiieinnrnnnnnn — 457,203
Redeemable preferred stock .................. 76,734,212 20,902,366
Stockholders’ deficit ..............o0iiiae (46,849,145 (436,368)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit. . . . $837,089,815 $ 26,086,297

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS OF ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.

Services revenue
Operating expenses and other income:

General and administrative...............

Total operating expenses and other income
Equity in net losses of subsidiaries

Nt 108S. ot ie it iieeinnriinnanreennnes

--------------------------

..........

Year Ended December 31,
1997 1996 1995
....... $ — 8 34000 $ —
...... 2,170,102 3,832,286 3,171,305
....... 57,069,304 (1,883,719 (1,834,589
....... 59,239,406 1,948,567 1,336,716
....... 46,500,608 25,280,843 25,578,462
....... $(105,740,014) $(27,195410) $(26,915178)
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9. Condensed Financial Information of Orion —~ (Continued)
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS OF ORION NETWORK SYSTEMS, INC.

Year Ended December 31,

97 1996 1995

NET CASH USED IN OPERATIONS ... $ (22,806,250) $ (4,046,446) $(4,107,237)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Advances to subsidiaries................. (407,092,800) (15,528,710) (8,664,024)
Capital expenditures .................. (504,729) (597,698)
Increase in restricted and segregated as-

SBLS ¢ttt et (406,937,388) — —_—
Release of restricted and segregated as-

£ & J R P 90,500,480 — —
Net cash used in investing activities .... (723,529,708) (16,033,439) (9,261,722)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance of debt, net..... 744,274,780 —_ e
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable
preferred stock ..................... 4,483,001

Proceeds from issuance of common stock. 2,152,668 343,120 51,974,436

PPU funding............c..coovinne... — — (455,000)
Repayment of notes payable........... — (2,496,300) (37,792)
Purchase of treasury stock ............ (91,490) — p—
Net cash (used in) provided by financing :

activities. ......oviiiiii i, 746,335,958 (2,153,180) 55,964,645
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash

equivalents............. ...l — (22,233,065) 42,595,686
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

ofyear ........iviiiiiiiiiia — 48,797,627 6,201,941
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year. $ — $ 26,564,562 $48,797,627

Basis of presentation — In these parent company-only condensed financial statements, Orion’s
investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less equity in the losses of subsidiaries since date of inception
or acquisition. Orion Network Systems, Inc. is presented for 1997 and Orion Oldco Services, Inc. is
presented for 1996 and 1995, as a result of the Exchange, the Merger and the financings consummated
January 31, 1997 all described in Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

10. Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations (Unaudited)

The following pro forma condensed consolidated statement of operations gives effect, as of January
1, 1997, to the Exchange, the Merger and the Financings consummated on January 31, 1997, all as
described in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and related transactions.

The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of operations does not purport to
present the actual results of operations of the Company had the Transactions in fact occurred on the
date specified, nor is it indicative of the results of operations that may be achieved in the future.
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10. Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations (Unaudited) ~ (Continued)

Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

Year Ended
December 31, 1997
(In thousands)
SEIVICE TEVETIUS . vt o vt e e e rr e ieeeeneeennns § 72,741
Operating exXpenses. .....coovivieierareeonnnns 116,239
Other expense (inCOMeE). . ...ovvvrvinenennnnas 64,601
Net JoSS .o ittt et (108,099)
Preferred stock dividend and accretion, net of
forfeitures .. ..o ettt et it 6,687
Net loss attributable to common stockholders. .. (114,786)
Net loss per common share .................. (9.86)

11. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31,
1997 and 1996 (in thousands except per share data):

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
1997
Revenues............oveennn.. $ 20,233 $ 16,687 $ 17,619 $ 18,202
Loss from operations .......... (8,317) (10,915) (11,270) (12,579)
NELIOSS . v v (25,984) (24,745) (27,510) (27,501)
Net loss per share ............. (2.48) (2.42) (2.63) 2.11)
1996
Revenues..........oovevunnn.. $ 7646 $ 10,123 $ 12,247 $ 11,831
Loss from operations .......... (10,155) (8,963) (7,151) (10,084)
NEt 0SS .« v e vveeaanaenn. (7.251) (6,760) (5,796) (7,388)
Net loss per share ............. (0.70) (0.65) (0.55) (0.72)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders of Loral Space & Communications Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Loral Space & Communications Ltd.
(a Bermuda company) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) as of December 31, 1997 and 1996
and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity/ invested equity and cash flows for
the year ended December 31, 1997, the nine months ended December 31, 1996 and the year ended March 31,
1996. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Company as of December 31, 1997 and 1996, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 1997, the nine months ended December 31,
1996 and the year ended March 31, 1996 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
New York, New York

March 6, 1998

(March 20, 1998 as to the fifth

paragraph of Note 3)



LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31,
1997 1996
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ......... ... $ 226,547 $1,180,752
CORITACES I PIOCESS . .+« . oo v v v e eeae s s o s et s 468,134
TRVEREOTIES & . o oot et e et e e e e e 98,325
OthEr CUITENE BSSEIS . v o e v et vt e oo naas e aenes 51,612 29,555
TOtal CUITENE ASSELS . . v v v v v v s e e aassaae s e s st anaeeas 844,618 1,210,307
Property, plant and equipment, Dt .. ... ... Lon i 926,679 17,939
Cost in excess of net assets acquired, less amortization ..........c..c.oonens 361,411
Long-term receivables . ... .. oovvuiiiaii e 78,639
Investments in affliates . .. ... it 472,639 443,057
DIEPOSILS . .+ . e e v e e eeeee et 154,970
OtHET BSSELS . oo e oo e ettt s e eae e i 165,980 28,023
$3,004,936 $1,699,326
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of debt .. ... ...t Beeniaa s $ 2,146
Accounts Payable . .. ... 231,519 $ 10,708
Accrued emplOYMENt COSS ..o vvvevrenrnrnrerneresnnrnnnonatnaceses 38,797
CUSIOMET AAVANCES . . . o s v v cnvnnnnannansasssonsusnesessssarunasans 68,287
Accrued interest and preferred dividends ....... .. . i 11,192 6,000
Other current Habiliies . . . oo rerernaaaraaseonneneasaseennuieanns 25,931
Income taxes payable ............ceieeiiiiiiiiiiie e 25,934 2,311
Deferred INCOME tAXES . . . vt eeveneermnnnanasssstonssssassssasannases 4,187 112
Total current Habilities .. .....overneii it 407,993 19,131
Deferred iNCOME tAXES . « . .« o evvv e erennrressserosanennesanesansansons 99,696 4,611
Pension and other postretirement liabilities ..........c.ovvieiverevneens 48,398 19,723
Long-term Habilities ... ......c.ovvviiirnmmnneeriiiiinre 31,388 2,500
Long-term debt . .......iiuiraeniniiir et 433,252
MROTItY IMEETESE . . o v e e v vereeeeneensueasanoausncncnassescnnses 10,964
Convertible preferred equivalent obligations ($600,000 principal amount) .. ... 583,292
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 6, 7 and 12)
Shareholders’ equity:
Series A convertible preferred stock, $.01 par value; 150,000,000 shares
authorized, 45,896,977 sharesissued ... ... .ccoooueciniinaiironen 459 459
Series B preferred stock, $.01 par value; 7 50,000 shares authorized and
TSSO . v v e s e e e aess v s enensoeaassnasesnosnsasessnosesasssns
6% Series C convertible redeemable preferred stock ($745,472 redemption
value), $.01 par value; 20,000,000 shares authorized, 14,909,437 shares
T 1=y« DU A P 733,762
Common stock, $.01 par value; 750,000,000 shares authorized, 200,950,864
and 191,092,308 shares issued ..........coviiirinorniiiiiiinaaenes 2,010 1,911
Paid-in capital ... ....cuniiiiiii e 1,216,128 1,058,822
Treasury stock, at cost; 101,053 shares ...... et ie e e (1,680)
Retained Carmings. .. ... covvvveeranencnnoranansaescansnescetseeons 22,566 8,877
Total shareholders’ eqUItY . ... . .vvvvveneeennrenuoocanrnnrenearneneee 1,973,245 1,070,069

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Nine months

Year ended ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
1997 1996 1996

REVEIUES « - o s v v e eee e e e e et e e e e $1,312,591
Management fee from affiliate ......... ... $ 5,088 $ 5,608
Costs and EXPENSES . . ..o v v vvniin i 1,299,039 17,289 3,021
Operating income (10SS) .. .......coiiriii i 13,552 (12,201) 2,587
Interest and investment inCOME ... .. .ot 49,069 34,699
INTErest EXPENSE ... ovvv e e e e e it 15,230 6,000 10,524
Gainonsaleof K&Fstock ...... ..o 79,591
Income (loss) before income taxes, minority interest and

equity in net loss of affiliates.......................conn 126,982 16,498 (7,937)
IOCOMMIE fRXES . o ot v eeees e ie s en i e 34,871 2,912 (2,780)
Income (loss) before minority interest and

equity in net loss of affiliates...................con 92,111 13,586 (5,157)
Minority interest . . .......ooiiiiii e (4,834)
Equity in net loss of affiliates ............... ...t . (47,273) {4,709) (8,628)
Net income (10S8) .. .vvvvn vt iiiiniiiiniee e aaneans 40,004 8,877 (13,785)
Preferred dividends and accretion. . ......oiiiia s (26,315)
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders........ $ 13,689 $ 8877 $(13,785)
Earnings (loss) per share:

BasiC . ittt i e $ 0.06 $§ 0.04 $ (08

Diluted . . .ottt e aes $ 0.06 $§ 004 $  (08)
Weighted average shares outstanding:

BaSIC .ttt it e 242,070 228,997 183,580

DAt . .ottt 243,591 229,396 183,580

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY/INVESTED EQUITY
Year ended December 31, 1997, nine months ended December 31, 1996 and

year ended March 31, 1996

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Balance March 31,1995 ...................
Advances from Old Loral ..................

Incorporation of Loral Space &

Communications Ltd. .. ..................
Balance March 31,1996 ...................
Advances fromOld Loral ..................
April 23, 1996 Distribution:

Other assets transferred and liabilities
assumed, net from Old Loral .........

Common stock issued to Old Loral
sharcholders and option holders .......

Sale of Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock e

Common stock issued to acquire interest in
S L e

Balance December 31,1996 ................
Shares issued:

Exercise of stock options and related tax
benefits, net of shares tendered . .........

Mandatory exchange of Convertible

Preferred Equivalent Obligations, net of
unamortized issue costs ................

Preferred dividends $3.00 pershare ............

Accretion to Series C Convertible Redeemable
Preferred Stock redemption value..........

Netineome .....ovviiiiinaaaniianennns
Balance at December 31,1997 .............

6% Series C
Serles A Conrvertible
Coavertible Redeemable
Preferred Stock  Preferred Stock  Commeoa Stock Total
Shares Shares Shares Paid-Is {avested Treasury Retsized Shareholders’
Issued Amounmt Issued Amount Isssed Amoust Capital Equity Stock  Earnings Equity
§ 251,819 § 251,819
116,362 116,362
{13,785) (13,785)
____ 12 $ 354,396 (354,396)
12 354,396 — 354,396
2,425 2,425
4,070 4070
183,580 $1,836 254,152 255,988
45897 $459 ® 343,541 344,000
1,500 75 100,238 100,313
— § 8877 8,877
45897 459 191,092 1911 ) 1,058,822 8,877 1,070,069
208 2 2015 $(1,680) 337
352 4 6,997 7,001
2,909 $149,600 8,043 80 130,820 - 280,500
1,256 13 17,474 17,487
12,000 583,282 383,282
(25,435)  (25.435)
880 (880)
40,004 40,004

e s wimasn  Sr———— o —————  S———  ————— ———— ———————— a—— —————
T R T T e, SOttty e — S—— S——,  Sma—————

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year ended Nine months ended Year ended

December 31, December 31, March 31,
1997 1996 1996
Operating activities:

Netincome (1058) .. iii ittt § 40,004 $ 8,877 $ (13,785)

Gainonthesale of K&F stock. ... ... .. . i (79,591)

Equity in net loss of affiliates ............ ... ... ... ... .ol 47,273 4,709 8,628

MInority INterest . ... .. . e 4,834

Deferred taRes . ... .ot e 419 (926) 3,838

Accretion on GTL CPEOS ... it e e e {1,739)

Dcprcciation and amoTtZAtOR ...\ttt ittt 62,764 1,051
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:

Contracts in process and inventories. . ... s (152,794)

DEPOSIS . . .o i (107,670)

O BT ASS0t8 . .. it (26,615) (9,252)

Accounts payable . ... .. ... 69,574 (1,832)

CUSTOMETr adVANCES . ..ottt t e erriaeee et e (57,778)

ACCTUC CXPONSES ..ottt e s (36,602) (4,506)

Taxes payable .. ... oo 24,873

Long-term liabilities . . ... ... .ot i e (17,200) (1,124)

Cash used in operating activities. ... ... ... ..ot (230,248) (3,003) (1,319)
Investing activities:

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired........ e (545,642)

Proceeds from the sale of K&F stock, net of expenses ................. 79,591

Investment in affiliates .. ............. i e (237,899) (6,425) (105,231)

mm' e el o e SR PR LR ° (63,482) (9,800)

rom the sale of property, plant and equipment ............... 5,003

Capital expenditures . ... ... .ottt (255,340) (540)

Cash used in investing activities . ............c..iiiiiaiiann e (1,022,772) (1,962) (115,031)
Financing activities:

Borrowings under revolving credit facility, net ............. ... ..o 32,812

Proceeds from issuance of term loan ........... ..o 275,000

Proceeds from convertible preferred equivalent obligations .............. 583,292

Proceeds from exercise of stock options and issuances to

employee savings plan ........ ..ol 7,338

Contribution from minority partner .......... ... ..o i .. 9,100

Preferred dividends .. ........coiiiiiiiiiiiiii i i i (25,435)

Proceeds from the Distribution . ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 612,274

Transaction expenses related to the Distribution ...................... (12,286)

Advances from Loral Corporation prior to the Distribution ............. 2,425 116,362
Cash provided by financing activities ............ocoiiiiiiiiii i 298,815 1,185,705 116,362
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ....................... (954,205) 1,180,740 12
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of period ....................... 1,180,752 12
Cash and cash equivalents — end ofperiod....... ... o i, $ 226,547 $1,180,752 $ 12
Non-cash transactions:

Mandatory exchange of Convertible Preferred Equivalent Obligations . ... .. $ 583,282

Issuance of Series C Preferred Stock to acquire equity interest in SS/L .. § 149,600
Issuance of Loral common stock to acquire equity interest in SS/L and

Globalstar partnership interests. ..........coiiiiniivireneaareanns $ 148,387 $ 100,313
Deferred purchase price to acquire Globalstar partnership interests....... $ 24787

Assets transferred from Loral Corporation at the Distribution ...........

Liabilities assum:

Transfer of GTL common stock to acquire equity interest in SS/L ......

L2

31,383
27,313
5,158

L

ed from Loral Corporation at the Distribution ..........

%

Su plcmcntal Information:

nterest Paid ... ... .. $§ 40,866
Taxes Pald . ... i e $ 8,901 $ 1,528

See notes 1o consolidated financial statements.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Principal Business

Loral Space & Communications Ltd. and subsidiaries (the “Company” or “Loral”) is one of the world’s
leading satellite companies, with substantial activities in satellite manufacturing and satellite-based communi-
cations services. Space Systems/Loral, Inc. (“SS/L”) is a leading designer and manufacturer of space
systems. Loral Skynet (“Skynet”), acquired March 14, 1997, is a leading provider of satellite communications
services in the United States. Skynet owns and operates the Telstar satellite network and is expanding its
business internationally, On November 17, 1997, a joint venture including Loral and another partner acquired
75% of SatMex, a satellite services provider to Mexico and South America. Loral also manages and is the
largest equity owner of Globalstar, L.P. (“Globalstar”), a global, mobile satellite telephony system scheduled
for service initiation in early 1999. Loral is pursuing additional satellite-based communications service
opportunities including CyberStar, a proposed worldwide high-speed broadband data services system initially
using leased Ku-band transponder capacity on Skynet’s Teistar 5 satellite.

Loral was formed to effectuate the distribution of Loral Corporation’s (“Old Loral”) space and
communications businesses (the “Distribution”) to shareholders of Old Loral and holders of options to
purchase Old Loral common stock pursuant to a merger agreement (the “Merger”) dated January 7, 1996
between Old Loral and Lockheed Martin Corporation (“Lockheed Martin”). The Distribution of approxi-
mately 183.6 million shares of Loral common stock was made on April 23, 1996. In connection with the
Distribution, Lockheed Martin contributed $612 million in cash to the Company. Of the amount contributed,
$344 million represented the purchase of 45,896,977 shares of Loral Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
(“Series A Preferred Stock™). Such stock is subject to certain voting limitations, restrictions on transfer and
standstill provisions. -

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

Loral operates on a December 31 fiscal year-end. The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 1997 and the nine months ended December 31, 1996, include the accounts of Loral
Space & Communications Ltd. and its subsidiaries. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 1997, include the results of SS/L for the full year and Skynet from March 14, 1997 (see
Note 3). All intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

The space and communications operations of Old Loral (the “Space & Communications Operations”)
operated under a March 31 year-end. For the year ended March 31, 1996, the consolidated financial
statements reflect that portion of the space and communications assets and operations included in Old Loral’s
historical financial statements that were spun-off to Loral.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Fi inancial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
amounts of expenses reported for the period. Actual results could differ from estimates.

A significant portion of Loral’s revenue is associated with long-term contracts which require significant
estimates. These estimates include forecasts of costs and schedules, estimating contract revenue related to
contract performance (including orbital incentives) and the potential for component obsolescence in
connection with long-term procurements. Other significant estimates include the estimated useful lives of the
Company’s satellites.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)
Concentration of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments which potentially subject Loral to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of
cash and cash equivalents, foreign exchange contracts and contracts in process and long-term receivables.
Loral’s cash and cash equivalents are maintained with high-credit-quality financial institutions. Loral’s
customers are U.S. and foreign governments and large multinational corporations. The creditworthiness of
such institutions is generally substantial and management believes that its credit evaluation, approval and
monitoring processes mitigate potential credit risks.

Sales to foreign customers, primarily in Asia, represented 30% of revenues for the year ended
December 31, 1997. Sales to the U.S. government represented 7% of revenues for the year ended
December 31, 1997.

Inventories

Inventories consist principally of common subassemblies not specifically identified to contracts in process,
and are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in-first-out (FIFO) or average
cost method.

Investments in Affiliates

Investments in affiliates are accounted for using the equity method. Income and losses of the affiliates are
recorded based on Loral’s beneficial interests. Intercompany profits arising from transactions between affiliates
are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s beneficial intcrests. Equity in losses of affiliates is not
recognized after the carrying value has been reduced to zero, unless guarantees or other obligations exist.

In connection with Loral’s investment in Globalstar, a development stage company, Loral capitalizes
interest cost on its investment. At December 31, 1997 and 1996 the total amount of capitalized interest
included in the investment in Globalstar was $23.5 million and $10.3 million, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided primarily on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the improvements.

Costs incurred in connection with the construction and successful deployment of the Company’s satellites
and related equipment are capitalized. Such costs include direct contract costs, allocated indirect costs, launch
costs, launch insurance and construction period interest. Capitalized interest related to the construction of
satellites for the year ended December 31, 1997 was $9.4 million. All capitalized satellite costs will be
amortized over the estimated useful life of the related satellite. The estimated useful life of the satellites,
ranging from 12 to 18 years, was determined by engineering analyses performed at the in-service date. Losses
from unsuccessful launches and in-orbit failures of the Company’s satellites, net of insurance proceeds, will be
recorded in the period when the loss occurs.

Cost in Excess of Net Assets Acquired

The excess of the cost of purchased businesses over the fair value of net assets acquired is being
amortized over 40 years using the straight-line method. Accumulated amortization was $10.8 million at
December 31, 1997.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

The carrying value of Loral’s long-lived assets is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the asset may not be recoverable. Current and future profitability, as well as
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

current and future undiscounted cash flows, excluding financing costs, are primary indicators of recoverability.
For the year ended December 31, 1997, there was no adjustment to the carrying value of Loral’s long-lived
assets resulting from these evaluations.

Other Assets

Other assets include a $25 million equity investment in CD Radio Inc. representing approximately 12% of
CD Radio’s equity. The Company accounts for this investment using the cost method.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue under long-term fixed-price contracts is recognized using the cost-to-cost percentage-of-
completion method. Revenue includes estimated orbital incentives discounted to present value at the launch
date. Costs include the development effort required for the production of high-technology satellites, non-
recurring engineering and design efforts in early periods of contract performance, as well as the cost of
qualification testing requirements.

Revenue under cost-reimbursable type contracts is recognized as costs are incurred; incentive fees are
estimated and recognized over the contract term.

Contracts with the U.S. government are subject to termination by the U.S. government for convenience
or for default. Other government contract risks include dependence on future appropriations and administra-
tive allotment of funds and changes in government policies. Costs incurred under U.S. government contracts
are subject to audit. Management believes the results of such audits will not have a material effect on Loral’s
financial position or results of operations.

Losses on contracts are recognized when determined. Revisions in profit estimates are reflected in the
period in which the conditions that require the revision become known and are estimable.

In accordance with industry practice, contracts-in-process include unbilled amounts relating to contracts
and programs with long production cycles, a portion of which may not be billable within one year.

Skynet provides satellite capacity under lease agreements that generally provide for the use of satellites
and, in certain cases, earth stations for periods generally ranging from one year to the life of the satellite. Some
of these agreements have certain obligations, including providing spare or substitute capacity, if available, in
the event of satellite failure. If no spare or substitute capacity is available, the agreement may be terminated.
Revenue under transponder lease agreements is recognized as services are performed. '

Allocation of Certain Expenses

For the year ended March 31, 1996, the results of operations include allocations and estimates of certain
expenses of Loral based upon estimates of actual services performed by Old Loral on behalf of Loral. The
amount of corporate office expenses reflected in these financial statements has been estimated based primarily
on the allocation methodology prescribed by government regulations pertaining to government contractors,
which management of Loral believes to be a reasonable allocation method. However, the results of operations
as presented herein may not be the same as would have occurred had the Space & Communications
Operations been an independent entity.

Interest Expense

For the year ended March 31, 1996, interest was allocated to Loral based upon Old Loral’s historical
weighted average debt cost applied to the average investment in affiliates, which management believes to be a
reasonable allocation method. Interest expense related to Old Loral’s investment in Globalstar was capitalized
because Globalstar has not commenced commercial operations.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)
Foreign Exchange Contracts

Loral enters into foreign exchange contracts as hedges against exchange rate fluctuations of future
accounts receivable and accounts payable denominated in foreign currencies. Realized and unrealized gains
and losses on foreign exchange contracts designated as hedges are deferred and recognized over the lives of the
related contracts in process.

Stock-Based Compensation

As permitted by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” Loral accounts for stock-based awards to employees using the intrinsic value method in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”.

Income Taxes

Commencing with the Distribution, Loral is subject to U.S. Federal, state and local income taxation at
regular corporate rates plus an additional 30% “branch profits” tax on any income that is effectively connected
with the conduct of a U.S. trade or business. U.S. subsidiaries are subject to regular corporate tax on their
worldwide income.

For the year ended March 31, 1996, the Space & Communications Operations were included in the
consolidated U.S. Federal income tax return and certain combined and separate state and local income tax
returns of Old Loral. However, for purposes of these financial statements, the provision (benefit) for income
taxes is computed as if the Space & Communications Operations were a separate taxpayer. Accordingly, the
provision (benefit) for income taxes is based upon reported income (loss) before income taxes. Current
income tax liabilities (benefits) are considered to have been paid (received) by Old Loral and are recorded
through the invested equity account with Old Loral.

Deferred income taxes for all periods presented reflect the tax effect of temporary, differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial and income tax reporting and are measured by applying
tax rates in effect at the end of each year.

Earnings Per Share

In 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 128, “Earnings per Share”
(“SFAS 128"). SFAS 128 replaced the calculation of primary and fully diluted earnings per share with basic
and diluted earnings per share. Unlike primary earnings per share, basic carnings per share excludes any
dilutive effects of options, warrants and convertible securitics. Dilutive earnings per share is very similar to the
previously reported fully diluted earnings per share. All earnings per share amounts have been presented and,
where appropriate, restated to conform to the requirements of SFAS 128 (see Note 14).

Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1997, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No. 130, “Reporting
Comprehensive Income” (“SFAS 130”) and Statement No. 131, “Disclosures About Segments of an
Enterprise and Related Information” (“SFAS 131”), and in February 1998, issued Statement No. 132,
“Employers’ Disclosures About Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits” (“SFAS 1327). SFAS 130
establishes standards for the reporting and display of comprehensive income and its components in a full set of
general purpose financial statements. Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of a business
enterprise during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from nonowner sources.
SFAS 131 establishes annual and interim reporting standards for an enterprise’s business segments and related
disclosures about its products, services, geographic areas and major customers. SFAS 132 expands and
standardizes the disclosure requirements for pensions and other postretirement benefits. The Company is
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (continued)

required to adopt SFAS 130, SFAS 131 and SFAS 132 in 1998, and the Company’s consolidated financial
statements will reflect the appropriate disclosures.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform prior year amounts to current year presentation.

3. Acquisitions
SS/L

At April 1, 1996, Loral had an effective 32.7% interest in SS/L. In 1996, Loral made a strategic decision
to increase its ownership of SS/L to 100%. The first step in implementing this decision was the acquisition by
Loral in August 1996 of the 18.3% interest in SS/L owned by certain partnerships affiliated with Lehman
Brothers (the “Lehman Partnerships”) in exchange for 7.5 million newly issued shares of Loral common
stock, 534,512 shares of common stock of GTL previously held by the Company and $4 million in cash. As a
result of this transaction, the Company increased its interest in SS/L from 32.7% to 51%.

In February 1997, Loral agreed to acquire the remaining 49% of the common stock of SS/L held by four
international acrospace and communications companies (the “Alliance Partners”) for $374 million. In March
1997, Loral acquired 24.5% of SS/L’s common stock for $93.5 million in cash and $93.5 million of Loral’s
Convertible Preferred Equivalent Obligations (“CPEOs”). M June 1997, the Company acquired the
remaining 24.5% of SS/L’s common stock for $187 million in the form of 8,042,922 shares of Loral common
stock and 1,063,663 shares of Series C Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Series C Preferred
Stock™). The aggregate purchase price of the 67.3% interest in SS/L acquired by Loral was $493.2 million.
The purchase price represented $174.4 million in excess of SS/L’s proportionate net book value which was
allocated primarily to the incremental value of SS/L’s investment in Globalstar of $62.2 million and cost in
excess of net assets acquired of $105.9 million. The consolidated financial statements include the results of
operations of SS/L since January 1, 1997, with a reduction for the earnings attributed to the minority
shareholders.

Skynet

On March 14, 1997, Loral acquired Skynet from AT&T for $462.1 million in cash. The fair value of
assets and liabilities recorded in connection with the purchase price allocation was $569.8 million and $107.7
million, respectively. Loral’s consolidated financial statements include the results of operations of Skynet from
the date of acquisition.

Had the acquisitions of SS/L, Skynet and the investment in SatMex (see Note 6) occurred on April 1,
1996 the unaudited pro forma revenue, net loss applicable to common stockholders and related basic and
diluted loss per share for the year ended December 31, 1997 and the nine months ended December 31, 1996
would have been: $1.3 billion and $1.0 billion; $19.2 million and $26.1 million; $0.08 and $0.11, and, $0.08 and
$0.11, respectively, These results, which are based on various assumptions, are not necessarily indicative of
what would have occurred had the acquisitions been consummated as of April 1, 1996.

Orion

On March 20, 1998, Loral acquired all of the outstanding stock, as defined, of Orion Network Systems,
Inc. (“Orion”) in exchange for Loral common stock. Loral issued 17.9 million shares of its common stock and
assumed existing Orion options and warrants to purchase 1.9 million shares of Loral common stock
representing an aggregate purchase price of $467 million. Loral will include Orion’s results from the date of
acquisition using the purchase method of accounting. Orion is a provider of satellite-based communications
services, focused primarily on private communications network services, Internet services and video distribu-
tion and other satellite transmission services. Orion provides multinational corporations with private communi-
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3. Acquisitions — (continued)

cations networks designed to carry high speed data, fax, video teleconferencing, voice and other specialized
services. Orion currently has one satellite in orbit and two satellites under construction.

Had the acquisitions of SS/L, Skynet, the investment in SatMex (see Note 6) and Orion occurred on
April 1, 1996 the unaudited pro forma revenue, net loss applicable to common stockholders and related basic
and diluted loss per share for the year ended December 31, 1997 and the nine months ended December 31,
1996 would have been: $1.4 billion and $1.0 billion; $95.4 million and $112.2 milli8n; $0.36 and $0.43; and,
$0.36 and $0.43, respectively. These results, which are based on various assumptions, are not necessarily
indicative of what would have occurred had the acquisitions been consummated as of April 1, 1996.

4. Contracts-in-Process
December 31, 1997
{In thousands)

U.S. government contracts:

Amounts Billed . ... .. e e $ 5,243
Unbilled contract receivables . ... ..ccviieriiiiii it 10,274
15,517

Commercial contracts:
Amounts billed ... ...t S e 194,997
Unbilled contract receivables .......... i 257,620
452,617
$468,134

Unbilled amounts include recoverable costs and accrued profit on progress completed which has not been
billed. Such amounts are billed upon shipment of the product, achievement of contractual milestones, or
completion of the contract and are reclassified to billed receivables.

Billed receivables relating to long-term contracts are expected to be collected within one year. Loral
classifies the orbital component of unbilled receivables expected to be collected beyond one year as long term.
Long-term receivable balances related to satellite orbital incentive payments at December 31, 1997 are
scheduled to be received as follows (in thousands):

1999 L\ttt e e e e e e $11,416
2000 © .ttt e e e e et iae e e 10,792
2000 ettt e e iaaa i e 10,782
200 ittt ee e et e e e e 10,657
BT A T o v vt i et eoecae s enoososensnssasoasassassnsssssaoasensennas 34,992

$78,639

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 1997 were $125.7 million
and include independent research and development costs, which are expensed as incurred, of $56.8 million.
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5, Property, Plant and Equipment

December 31,
1997 1996
{in thousands)
Land and land improvements ............ ... .. ... .. e $ 24,999
Buildings .. .. 58,443
Leasehold improvements ...... ... . it 10,234 $ 171
Equipment, furniture and fixtures ... ... ... ... . et 154,684 20,083
Satellites and earth stations . .. ... oot et i s 506,852
Satellites under CONSIIUCHOM .. ..ottt et e eict i, 233,204
Construction in progress........ e AU 29,823
1,018,239 20,254
Accumulated depreciation ....... ... . o i i (91,560) (2,315)

$ 926,679 $17,939

Depreciation expense was $52.0 million and $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 1997 and the
nine months ended December 31, 1996. No depreciation expense was allocated to the Space & Communica-
tions Operations of Old Loral for the year ended March 31, 1996.

6. Investments in Affiliates

December 31,
1997 1996
(In thousands)
Globalstar . ... ov ittt e i ettt a e e s $383,714 $175,639
TN 4.7 (- SO 88,925
10 2 O RPN 267,418
-2 A 23,568
Deferred K&F gain . .........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniirennaanennns. (23,568)
$472.639  $443,057
Equity in net income (loss) of affiliates consists of (in thousands):
Year ended Nine months ended Year ended
December 31, 1997 December 31, 1996  March 31, 1996
Globalstar .......oviiinvniienncnannonans $(42,503) $(18,105) $(20,580)
Tax benefit of Globalstar partnership
losses (see Note 8) ............covvvntn 1,626 8,308
SatMex ... ... it it e (6,396)
T O 13,396 4,044
SWI2T)  $ I § B8
Globalstar

Loral is the managing partner of Globalstar. Globalstar will operate a worldwide, LEO satellite-based
digital telecommunications system (the “Globalstar™ System”) that is scheduled to commence service in
carly 1999. The Globalstar System is designed to enable local service providers to offer low-cost, high quality
wireless voice telephony and data services in virtually every populated area of the world. Currently,
Globalstar’s designated service providers have agreed to offer service and seek all necessary regulatory
approvals in more than 100 nations, accounting for about 88% of the world’s population. On February 14,
1998, Globalstar launched the first four satellites of its 56 (including eight in-orbit spares) satellite
constellation.
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6. Investments in Affiliates — (continued)

In May 1997, Globalstar Telecommunications Limited (“GTL”), a public company that acts as a
general partner of Globalstar, issued a two-for-one stock split. Accordingly, all GTL share amounts have been
adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split. Prior to the two-for-one stock split, GTL's equity securities and
convertible securities were represented by equivalent Globalstar partnership interests on a one-for-one basis.
Globalstar’s partnership interests were not affected by the GTL stock split and, accordingly, GTL’s equity
securities and convertible securities are now represented by equivalent Globalstar partnership interests on a
two-for-one basis.

At December 31, 1997, Loral had a direct and indirect ownership of 20,962,211 (40.1%) ordinary
partnership interests of the total 52,319,076 Globalstar ordinary partnership interests outstanding. A portion of
Loral's investment in Globalstar is heid in the form of 5,439,678 shares of GTL common stock. At
December 31, 1997, the market value of the GTL shares, based on the last reported sales price, was $267.2
million.

On September 14, 1995, Old Loral in its capacity as managing general partner of Globalstar, granted
certain officers of Old Loral, who were also officers of GTL and Globalstar, options to purchase 280,000 shares
of the GTL common stock owned by Loral at an exercise price of $10.00 per share. On December 12, 1995,
Loral granted non-employee directors of Loral options to purchase 400,000 shares of the GTL common stock
owned by Loral at an exercise price of $16.69 per share. Thesesoptions were immediately exercisable and
expire 12 years from date of grant; no options were exercised or cancelled during the year. On October 9, 1996,
Loral, in its capacity as managing general partner, granted certain officers of Loral, who were also officers of
GTL and Globalstar, options to purchase 304,000 shares of the GTL common stock owned by Loral at an
exercise price of $12.50 per share. Such options vest over a three-year period and expire 10 years from date of
grant; no options were exercised or cancelled during the year.

On December 15, 1995, Globalstar entered into a $250 million credit agreement (the “Globalstar Credit
Agreement”) with a group of banks. Lockheed Martin, SS/L and certain other Globalstar partners have
guaranteed $206.3 million, $11.7 million and $32.0 million of the Globalstar Credit Agreement, respectively.
In addition, Loral agreed to indemnify Lockheed Martin for any liability in excess of $150 million. In
exchange for the guarantee and indemnity, GTL issued warrants'to purchase 8,370,636 shares of GTL
common stock at $13.25 per share as follows: Loral and SS/L 2,275,044 warrants, Lockheed Martin 5,022,380
warrants and certain other Globalstar partners 1,073,212 warrants. In February 1997, GTL accelerated the
vesting and exercisability of these warrants and the holders exercised such warrants. In addition, GTL"
distributed to the holders of its common stock rights to subscribe for and purchase 2,262,336 GTL shares for a
price of $13.25 per share of which Loral received rights to purchase 318,344 shares and agreed to purchase all
shares not purchased upon exercise of the rights. In March 1997, Loral exercised warrants to purchase
2,275,044 shares of common stock of GTL for $30.1 million and, in April 1997, Loral exercised its right as a
shareholder in GTL to purchase an additional 350,348 shares of GTL common stock for $13.25 per share.
GTL used the proceeds from the exercise of the warrants and the rights, to purchase additional Globalstar
ordinary partnership interests.

In March 1996, Loral purchased $100 million principal amount of GTL 6%% Convertible Preferred
Equivalent Obligations, due 2006 par value $50 per share, (“GTL CPEOs”) for $97 million. In April 1996,
Loral purchased an additional $2.5 million principal amount of the GTL CPEOs for $2.4 million. Such
amounts are included in the investment in Globalstar. The GTL CPEOs must be redeemed by GTL on
March 1, 2006. Loral, at its option, may convert its holdings of GTL’s CPEO’s into 3,153,846 shares of GTL
common stock subject to adjustment for certain anti-dilution provisions. Loral’s interest income for the year
and nine months ended December 31, 1997 and 1996 includes $7.2 million and $5.5 million related to its
investment in GTL CPEO:s.
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6. Investments in Affiliates — (continued)

During 1997, Loral acquired 2,208,372 Globalstar ordinary partnership interests from other Globalstar
partners for $97.5 million in cash and 1,255,684 shares of Loral common stock. In addition, on October 21,
1997 Loral acquired 540,000 ordinary partnership interests of Globalstar from another Globalstar partaer, for
$24.8 million. The purchase price is payable in installments during 1998 and bears interest at 6%. Any unpaid
balance at December 31, 1998 is due in cash.

Pursuant to the Globalstar partnership agreement, Loral is responsible for managing the operations of
Globalstar and is entitled to receive a Managing Partner’s Allocation on commencement of commercial
operations.

SS/L is the prime contractor for the construction and launch of the satellite constellation under a
contract valued at $1.4 billion. SS/L has awarded subcontracts to third parties, including other investors in
Globalstar, for substantial portions of its obligations under the contract. Revenue recorded under the
Globalstar contract for the year ended December 31, 1997 was $408.1 million. Billed and unbilled receivables
from Globalstar at December 31, 1997, were $84.2 million.

Globalstar’s current budgeted expenditures for the cost for the design, construction and development of
the Globalstar System, including working capital, cash interest on borrowings and operating expenses, are
approximately $2.7 billion. Globalstar has raised or received commitments for approximately $2.6 billion in
equity, debt and vendor financing. In addition, Globalstar will purchase from SS/L ecight additional spare
satellites for $175 million that will increase Globalstar’s ability to have at least 40 satellites in service during
1999, even in the event of launch failures. If the launch program is successful, the additional satellites will
serve as ground spares, readily available for launch to replenish the constellation as needed in response to
satellite attrition during the first generation, or to increase system capacity as required. If Globalstar were to
experience a launch failure, the costs associated with the construction and launch of replacement satellites
would be substantially covered by insurance, and in that event the cost of the additional satellites used as
replacements, would be reimbursed to Globalstar.

SS/L provides Globalstar with approximately $310 million of the contract billings to be deferred as
vendor financing. Of the $310 million, $90 million is interest bearing at the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 3% per
annum. The remaining $220 million of vendor financing is non-interest bearing. Globalstar will repay the
non-interest bearing portions as follows: $49 million following the launch and acceptance of 24 or more
satellites (the “Preliminary Constellation™), $61 million upon the launch and acceptance of 48 or more
satellites (the “Full Constellation”), and the remainder in equal installments over the five-year period
following acceptance of the Preliminary and Full Constellations. SS/L’s subcontractors have assumed a
portion of this vendor financing which totals approximately $121 million and will be paid on similar terms.
Payment of the $90 million interest bearing vendor financing will be deferred until December 31, 1998 or the
Full Constellation Date, whichever is earlier. Thereafter, interest and principal will be repaid in twenty equal
quarterly installments over the next five years. In addition, under the contract for the additional eight spare
satellites, SS/L will provide an additional $43 million of vendor financing of which $19 million will be interest
bearing. The repayment terms are substantially the same as the prior vendor financing. At December 31, 1997,
$90 million was due under these arrangements, all of which was interest bearing.

SatMex

In connection with the privatization by the Federal Government of Mexico (the “Mexican Govern-
ment”) of its fixed satellite services business, Loral and Telefonica Autrey, S.A. de C.V. (“Telefonica
Autrey”) formed a joint venture, Firmamento Mexicano, S. de R.L. de C.V. (*Holdings”). Holdings acquired
75% of the outstanding capital stock of Satélites Mexicanos, S.A. de C.V. (“SatMex”) for $646.8 million. The
purchase price was financed by a Loral equity contribution of $94.6 million, a Telefoncia Autrey equity
contribution ‘of $50.9 million and debt issued by Holdings. As part of the acquisition, Holdings issued a
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$125.1 million seven year obligation bearing interest at 6.03% to the Mexican Government (the “Government
Obligation”) in consideration for the assumption by SatMex of the debt incurred by Holdings in connection
with the acquisition. The debt of SatMex and Holdings is non-recourse to Loral and Telefonica Autrey.
However, Loral and Telefonica Autrey have agreed to maintain assets in a collateral trust in an amount equal
to the value of the Government Obligation through December 30, 2000 and, thereafter, in an amount equal to
1.2 times the Government Obligation until maturity. Loral has a 65% economic interest in Holdings and a 49%
indirect economic interest in SatMex.

Loral, together with Telefonica Autrey, will be responsible for managing SatMex and will receive an
aggregate management fee, based on a sliding scale, applied to SatMex’s quarterly gross revenues up to a
maximum of 3.75% of cumulative gross revenues. In addition, Loral Skynet will license certain intellectual
property to SatMex for a fee of 1.5% of SatMex’s gross revenues. Such fees were not significant for the year
ended December 31, 1997.

SS/L

In 1997, Loral discontinued the use of the equity method of accounting for SS/L and consolidates
SS/L’s financial position and results of operations in its financial statements (see Note 3).

L

The SS/L stockholders’ agreement provided for management fees to be paid to Loral, ranging from 0.5%
to 1% of sales, as defined, depending upon SS/L’s operating performance. Such management fees were $5.1
million and $5.6 million for the nine months ended December 31, 1996 and the year ended March 31, 1996,
respectively. The stockholders’ agreement also required SS/L to pay Loral an annual fee for overhead
reimbursement, not to exceed 1% of SS/L’s adjusted sales, as defined, for cach fiscal year. This fee amounted
to $2.7 million and $3.4 million for the nine months ended December 31, 1996 and for the year ended
March 31, 1996, respectively.

At December 31, 1996, other current assets include $9.3 million due from SS/L primarily related to
these management fees and overhead reimbursement.

K&F

Old Loral’s 22.5% voting equity interest in K&F Industries, Inc. (“K&F”) was transferred to Loral at the
Distribution. Loral used the equity method to account for its investment in K&F; however, no income or loss
was recognized due to K&F’s financial position. In December 1997, Loral sold its 22.5% equity interest for
$80.6 million and recorded a $79.6 million gain on the sale.

Summary Financial Data of Affiliates

The following table presents summary financial data for Globalstar at December 31, 1997 and 1996 and
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 1997 and cumulative (in thousands):

Cumalative March 23, 1994

Year ended December 31, (commencement of operations)

1997 1996 1995 to December 31, 1997

Statement of operations data:
REVEDUES . ot vvinteeecneeaneaannns $ — & - & - $ -
Operating loss...............coinnn 88,071 61,025 80,226 257,349
Net10SS. . verurennieeiierninnnns 67,586 54,646 68,237 216,713
Preferred distributions ................. 21,202 17,323 38,525
Net loss applicable to ordinary partnership

100 11 £ TS N 88,788 71,969 68,237 255,238
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

6. Investments in Affiliates — (continued)

December 31,

1997 1996

Balance sheet data:

CUITENT B85S o v o v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 453,780 $ 21,786
Total BSSEES . .o e e 2,149,053 942913
Current Habilities. . . ..o e 143,810 75,267
Long-termdebt ................... ... U 1,099,531

Long-term labilities .. ... .. .. . i 221,795 250,423
Redeemable preferred partnership interests ........... ... ... 0. 303,089 302,037
Ordinary partners’ capital .. ........ ... i 380,828 315,186

The following table presents unaudited summary financial data for SatMex at December 31, 1997, and
for the period November 17, 1997 (date of acquisition) through December 31, 1997 (in thousands):
November 17, 1997
t
Decembel? 31, 1997
Statement of operations data:

ROVOIIUCS . « ot vttt e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e $ 12,540
Operating inComMe. .. ..ottt iiiiiiieinaenaaenns Bt e e 4,757
N J088 . oo ittt ittt ittt e et e te et ena e aesaeaeaa e s - 13,058

December 31, 1997
Balance sheet data:

(08 g 17 E R T -3 3 $ 62,457
0 € 1 VLT g 936,554
CurTent Habilities . .. oot ettt it e e e e e 5,438
Long-term debt ... ... i i e 570,000
Shareholders’ equity .. ......cttureiniiiiat i ittt 361,116

The following table presents summary financial data for SS/L at December 31, 1996 and for the nine
months ended December 31, 1996 and the year ended March 31, 1996 (in thousands):

Nine moanths ended Year ended
December 31, 1996 March 31, 1996

Statement of operations data:

REVEIUES . oot v ittt it et et ee e ineieennnsasasaaenanancenansns $1,017,653 $1,121,619
Operating incomME ... ovvninnnne ettt iiierinineasneeasanas 54,011 22,054
NEt IMCOMIE ...ttt it et irneiese s e saenasseaeecanaeennanannns 31,025 12,367

December 31, 1996
Balance sheet data:

CUTTERE BS5EES . . . o v vt vt e ettt et ta et e s e et e e e e eammaae et an $ s21,510
oS E Y VT2 < A U 1,059,064
Current Habilities . . .. ..ot in ittt i i it et i e et 377,929
Long term debt ... . 0. ittt i i i e i 127,586
Other noncurrent Habilities . ... ... i i e s 72,666
MIROMILY IALETEST . . .\t u it e i oot te et eiiianareaaaaenaoaeeanns U 1,990
Shareholders’ qUILY ... ..ot i 478,893
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7. Long-Term Debt

December 31, 1997
(In thousands)

Term 10an, 7200 . . oot e $275,000
Revolving credit facility, 7.2% ........... oo 55,000
Note purchase facility ............ . i 88,234
Export-Import credit facility. . ... 17,164
Total debt . oo e 435,398

Less, current maturities. . .. ..o oottt 2,146
$433,252

Loral SpaceCom Corporation (“Loral SpaceCom”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Loral, and SS/L have
entered into an $850 million amended and restated credit and participation agreement (the “Credit
Agreement”) with a group of banks dated November 14, 1997. The Credit Agreement provides for a
$275 million term loan facility, a $500 million revolving credit facility, of which up to $175 million may be
used for letters of credit, and a separate $75 million letter of credit facility. Both the term loan facility and
revolving credit facility are for a period of five years. The separate letter of credit facility runs for a two-year
period. The term loan facility requires repayment in twelve consecutive quarterly installments beginning
December 31, 1999. The first four installments are $18,750,000 ‘each with the final eight installments being
$25,000,000 each. Borrowings under the facilities are secured by the stock of Loral SpaceCom and SS/L and
bear interest, at Loral SpaceCom’s option, at various rates based on margins over the lead bank’s base rate or
the London Interbank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) for periods of one to six months. Loral SpaceCom pays a
commitment fee on the unused portion of the facilities. The Credit Agreement contains customary covenants
including an interest coverage ratio and debt to capitalization ratios. In addition, the Credit Agreement
contains limitations on indebtedness, liens, guarantee obligations, assct sales, dividends, investments and
transactions with affiliates. Under the terms of the Credit Agreement, Loral SpaceCom may pay dividends to
its parent if the cumulative dividend payments do not exceed 50% of cumulative net income, as defined, and
the ratio of funded debt to EBITDA, as defined, is less than three to one. Currently, Loral SpaceCom, a
wholly owned subsidiary of Loral, has equity and intercompany debt of approximately $1.1 billion, of which
approximately $200 million can be paid to its parent.

In 1994, SS/L entered into a $139.3 million note purchase facility (the “Note Purchase Facility”) with
an Italian bank Borrowings are determined by formula and are made in accordance with a specified schedule
through the earlier of June 30, 1998, or until the facility is fully disbursed. The outstanding principal is to be
repaid on the earlier of twenty-three months from the final acceptance date of certain satellite deliveries or
April 30, 2000. Interest is charged at a weighted average annual rate of 4.26% and is payable semiannually. All
borrowings under this facility reduce the amount available under the Credit Agreement.

SS/L borrowed a total of $42.9 million under an export-import credit facility (the “EX-IM Facility™)
with a Japanese bank. The EX-IM Facility is fully secured by a letter of credit arrangement with another
bank. At December 31, 1997, no amounts remained available for borrowing under this facility. The
outstanding principal is to be repaid in semiannual installments through November 1, 2005. Interest is charged
at LIBOR less %% and is payable semiannually on May 1 and November 1.

The aggregate maturities for the years 1998 through 2002 are as follows: $2,146,000, $20,896,000,
$83,396,000, $102,146,000 and $220,380,000.
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8. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):

Nine moaths

Year ended ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
1997 1996 1996
Current:
US. Federal. .. ... i s $27,204 $2,913 $(5,772)
Stateand local .. ... .. i 7,248 925 (660)
34,452 3,838 (6,432)
Deferred, principally U.S. Federal.................. 419 (926) 3,652
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes........... $34,871 $2,912 $(2,780)

The provision for income taxes excludes: current tax benefits related to the exercise of stock options,
credited directly to Stockholders’ Equity, of $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 1997; a current tax
benefit of $4.3 million and $0.2 million for the years ended December 31, 1997 and March 31, 1996,
respectively, and, a deferred tax liability of $2.7 million and a benefit of $8.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 1997 and March 31, 1996, respectively, related to the Globalstar partnership loss included in

equity in net loss of affiliates. L
The effective income tax rate differs from the statutory Federal income tax rate for the following reasons:
Year ended Nine moaths ended Year ended
December 31, 1997 December 31, 1996 March 31, 1996

Statutory U.S. Federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% (35.0)%
State and local income taxes, net of

Federal income tax................ 30 30 : (4.0)
Foreign source income and losses taxed

atlowerrate ....... ... . it (13.3) (21.3)
Non-deductible amortization of cost in

excess of net assets acquired........ 2.6
Undistributed income of affiliates...... 4.0
Other, net .....ovviieverenueernnnnn 2 1.0
Effective income taxrate............. 27.5% 17.7% (35.0)%

T—— — T —

At December 31, 1997; the Company had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $28.4 million
and tax credit carryforwards of approximately $3.6 million which generally expire through 2012. For the
twelve months ended December 31, 1997 and the nine months ended December 31, 1996, income before
income taxes includes approximately $72 and $10 million, respectively, of foreign source income.
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8. Income Taxes — (continued)

The significant components of the net deferred income tax liability are (in thousands):

December 31,
1997 1996

Postretirement benefits other than pensions...............ohiann $(14,927)
TAVERLOTEE COBIE + vt vt vttt e n e ia e (37,457)
Net operating loss and tax credit carryovers .......... ..o oeenne (13,562)
Compensation and benefits ... (11,129) $ 32
L0 T3 1= o= P (74) 251
PONSION COSLS © . v v vt v e vin et ene s eaannneseanuannssenanaosecens 5,957 52
Property, plant and equUIpment ........o..oviiiirieieiiiaaenn 54,838 4,388
Income recognition on long-term contracts ..ot 120,237

Net deferred income tax Hability ........ ... i $103,883 $4,723

9. Sharehoiders’ Equity
Series A Preferred Stock

Significant terms of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock include a liquidation preference of $.01 per
share prior to pro rata participation with the common stock and the ability to convert to common stock upon
the receipt of certain antitrust clearance or sales to an unaffiliated third party. The Series A Preferred Stock
has the same voting rights as the Company’s common stock except, it has no right to vote for the election of
directors.

Series B Preferred Stock

The Series B Preferred Stock will, if issued, be junior to any other series of preferred stock which may be
authorized and issued.

6% Series C Preferred Stock

On November 1, 1996, the Company sold $600 million of 6% Convertible Preferred Equivalent
Obligations which, were mandatorily exchanged on June 5, 1997 into shares of the Company’s Series C
Preferred Stock resulting in a reclassification of these amounts into shareholders’ equity. The Series C
Preferred Stock has an aggregate liquidation preference equal to the aggregate redemption value and a
mandatory redemption date of November 1, 2006. The Series C Preferred Stock is convertible into shares of
common stock of the Company at a conversion price of $20 per share. At December 31, 1997, the outstanding
Series C Preferred Stock was convertible into 37,273,593 shares of Loral common stock.

The Series C Preferred Stock, with respect to dividend rights and rights upon liquidation, winding up and
dissolution, ranks pari passu with Loral’s Series A Preferred Stock and senior to or pari passu with all other
existing and future series of preferred stock of Loral and senior to Loral common stock. The Series C
Preferred Stock is redeemable in cash or Loral common stock at any time, in whole or in part, at the option of
the Company (at a premium which declines over time) commencing November §, 1999.

Stock Plans

In April 1996, Loral established the 1996 Stock Option Plan. An aggregate of 12 million shares of
common stock were reserved for issuance. Under this plan, options are granted at the discretion of the
Company’s Board of Directors to employees of the Company and its affiliates. Such options become
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9. Shareholders’ Equity — (continued)

exercisable as determined by the Board, generally over five years, and generally expire no more than 10 years
from the date of the grant.

As discussed in Note 2, the Company continues to account for its stock-based awards using the intrinsic
value method in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees” and its related interpretations. Accordingly, no compensation expense based on the fair value
method has been recognized in the financial statements for employee stock arrangements.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
(“SFAS 123”) requires the disclosure of pro forma net income and earnings per share as though the Company
had adopted the fair value method. Under SFAS 123, the fair value of stock-based awards to employees is
calculated through the use of option pricing models, even though such models were developed to estimate the
fair value of freely tradable, fully transferable options without vesting restrictions, which significantly differ
from the Company’s stock option awards. These models also require subjective assumptions, including future
stock price volatility and expected time to exercise, which greatly affect the calculated values. The Company’s
calculations were made using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average
assumptions for 1997 and 1996: expected life, 6 months following vesting; stock volatility, 25%; risk free
interest rate, 5.5% to 6.55% based on date of grant; and no dividends during the expected term. The
Company’s calculations are based on a multiple option valugtion approach and forfeitures are recognized as
they occur. If the computed fair values of the 1997 and 1996 awards, including stock-based compensation
awards to employees of the Company’s affiliates, had been amortized to expense over the vesting period of the
awards, pro forma net income applicable to common stockholders would have decreased by $4.4 million ($.02
per diluted share) and $4.1 million ($.02 per diluted share) to $9.3 million ($.04 per diluted share) and
$4.8 million (8.02 per diluted share) for the year and nine months ended December 31, 1997 and 1996,
respectively. '

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plans as of December 31, 1997 and 1996 and
changes during the periods then ended is presented below:

w;eighted-
Exercise
Shares Price

Outstanding at March 31, 1996 ... .. . iiiiiiiiii i —_ $§ —
Granted (weighted average fair value $2.93 per share) ............... 6,412,000 10.60
FOrfeited . . ...t tet ettt e e 500 10.50
Outstanding at December 31, 1996 .. ... ..ot iiiniiiineiiirrnn... 6,411,500 10.60
Granted (weighted average fair value $3.97 per share) ............... 732,500 13.93
Exercised .. ...ttt i e e, 207,750 10.50
Forfeited .. ..ot i e 175,800 12.98
Outstanding at December 31, 1997 .. ... ... i i, 6,760,450 $10.90
Options exercisable at December 31, 1997 . ....... ... vt ivnn.... 2,014,250 $10.53
Options exercisable at December 31, 1996. .. ... cvtv it iirinenennn. 1,200,000 $10.50

At December 31, 1997, the range of exercise prices and the weighted-average remaining contractual life
of outstanding options was $10.50 to $20.47 and 8.4 years, respectively. The range for the options exercisable
at December 31, 1997 was $10.50 to $15.94. All options granted during the year were non-qualified stock
options. As of December 31, 1997, 5,031,800 shares of common stock were available for future grant under the
Plan.

F-21



LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

10. Pensions and Other Employee Benefits
Pensions

The Company maintains a pension plan and a supplemental retirement plan. These plans are defined
benefit pension plans and members in certain locations may contribute to the pension plan in order to receive
enhanced benefits. Eligibility for participation in these plans vary and benefits are based on members’
compensation and/or years of service. In connection with the Distribution, Loral assumed the obligations of
such members previously employed by Old Loral, in exchange for plan assets as defined. The Company’s
funding policy is to fund the pension plan in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code and regulations
thereon and to fund the supplemental retirement plan on an actuarial basis, including service cost and
amortization amounts. Contributions of $1.9 million were made for the year ended December 31, 1997, and no
contributions were made for the nine months ended December 31, 1996. Plan assets are generally invested in
U.S. government and agency obligations and listed stocks and bonds.

Pension cost includes the following components (in thousands):

Year ended Nine moaths ended
December 31, 1997 December 31, 1996
Service cost-benefits earned during the period........... $ 6,538 $ 268
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation............. 14,277 1,410
Actual return on plan assets . ........oiiii i nnn . (28,044) (499)
Net amortization and deferral ...............ooivinnn 11,619 (m
Total pension COSt .. ...oovivecaninrarnnineeenenns $ 4,390 $1,102

The following presents the plans’ funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet (in
thousands):

December 31,
1997 1996
Assets exceed Accumulated Accumaulated
accumalated benefits benefits
benefits exceed assets exceed assets
Actuarial present value of benefit obligations:
Vested benefits ... ...ovverrnn e $154,328 $ 24,210 $ 27,831
Accumulated benefits .. ... ... . e $156,443 $ 24,226 $ 27,845
Effect of projected future salary increases ........ 22,929 568 694
Projected benefits . ...t 179,372 24,794 28,539
Plan assets at fairvalue ..........oocnnnieonnnns 189,546 8,467 9,450
Plan assets in excess of (less than) projected benefit
oblgation .. ...l 10,174 {16,327) {19,089)
Unrecognized prior service cost................... (72) 28
Unrecognized net loss (gain) .................... 3,115 {1,048) (445)
Prepaid (accrued) pensioncost................... $ 13,217 $ (17,287) $(19,534)
The principal actuarial assumptions were:
o7 19%
DASCOUNE TBEE .+ v v e s v eenseeasaeeennenunessssssnosessasnesssanosnnnueccs 125% 71.75%
Rate of increase in compensation levels ...........ooiiiiiiiiiaiieiiens 450% 4.50%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. .........covaeereeerenns 9.50% 9.50%
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10. Pensions and Other Employee Benefits — (continued)
Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company provides certain health care and life insurance
benefits for retired employees and dependents. Participants are eligible for these benefits when they retire from
active service and meet the eligibility requirements for the Company’s pension plan. These benefits are funded
primarily on a pay-as-you-go basis with the retiree generally paying a portion of the cost through contributions,
deductibles and coinsurance provisions.

Postretirement health care and life insurance costs include the following components (in thousands):

Year ended Nine months ended
December 31, 1997 December 31, 1996
Service cost - benefits earned during the period.......... $ 915 $13
Interest cost on accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation .............................. ... 2,314 9
Actual return on plan assets ..................... ... .. (136)
Net amortization and deferral ........................ (1,137) .
Total postretirement health care and life insurance costs . . $ 1,956 $22

]
The following presents the plans funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet (in

thousands):
December 31, 1997 December 31, 1996

Actuarial present value of benefit obligations:

Retirees. ................oo i $16,695 $ -
Fully eligible active participants...................... 3,864 30
Other active participants............................ 15,451 148
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligations . . ... ... 36,010 178
Plan assets at fair value .............................. 2,022
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligations
in excess of plan assets ............................. 33,988 178
Unrecognized prior service cost ... ..................... 2,894
Unrecognized net gain (1088) .......................... (5,7171) 11
Accrued postretirement health care cost................. $31,111 $189
The principal actuarial assumptions were:
Discountrate ..., 7.25% 7.75%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets ......... 9.50%

The health care cost trend rates at December 31, 1997 and 1996, were assumed to be 9.96% and 10.59%,
respectively, decreasing gradually to an ultimate rate of 5.50% by the year 2004. Changing the assumed health
care cost trend rate by 1% in each year would change the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at
December 31, 1997 by approximately $6.7 million and the aggregate service and interest cost components for
1997 by approximately $0.8 million.

Employee Savings Plan

In April, 1996 the Company adopted the employee savings plan which provides that the Company match
the contributions of participating employees up to a designated level. Under this plan, the matching
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10. Pensions and Other Employee Benefits — (continued)

contributions in Loral common stock or cash were $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 1997 and
$0.1 million for the nine months ended December 31, 1996.

i11. Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate fair value:

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value because of the short maturity
of those instruments. The fair value of the Series C Preferred Stock and the CPEQ’s are based on market
quotations and the fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is based on carrying value due to the short-term
variable interest rate on the outstanding borrowings.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 1997
Carrying Fair

Amount Value
Cash and cash equivalents ..........c.coiiiiiiieir e $ 226,547 $ 226,547
Long-term debt, including current maturities ............oooevenes 435,398 435,398
Series C Preferred Stock. .o oovirv i St 733,762 916,930

December 31, 1996

Carrying Fair

Amount Value
Cash and cash equivalents ..........c.ooviiiiiiiriiiinns $1,180,752 $1,180,752
Convertible Preferred Equivalent Obligations.............ccovvnnn. 583,292 681,000

Foreign Currency Hedges

At December 31, 1997, the Company had foreign currency exchange contracts (forwards and swaps)
with several banks to purchase and sell foreign currencies, primarily Japanese yen, aggregating $175.1 million.
Such contracts were designated as hedges of certain foreign contracts and subcontracts to be performed by
SS/L through May 2006. The fair value of these contracts, based on quoted market prices, was $139 million at
December 31, 1997. At December 31, 1997, deferred gains on forward contracts to sell foreign currencies,
primarily yen, were $26.6 million and deferred losses on forward contracts to purchase foreign currencies,
primarily yen, were $9.5 million.

The Company is exposed to credit-related losses in the event of nonperformance by counter parties to
these financial instruments, but does not expect any counter party to fail to meet its obligation.
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11. Financial Instruments — (continued)

The maturity of foreign currency exchange contracts held at December 31, 1997 is consistent with the
contractual or expected timing of the transactions being hedged, principally receipt of customer payments
under long-term contracts and payments to vendors under subcontracts. These foreign exchange contracts
mature as follows (in thousands):

Te Purchase To Sell
At At At At
Years Contract Market Contract Market
to Matarity Rate Rate Rate Rate
L e $68,582 859,937 § 20,711 $14,766
20 S 5,804 4,939 65,276 48,975
61010 ... 14,750 10,385

$74,386 $64,876 $100,737 $74,126

12. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases certain facilities equipment and transponder capacity under agreements expiring at
various dates. Certain leases covering facilities contain renewal and or purchase options which may be
exercised by the Company. Rent expense was $17.7 million for the year ended December 31, 1997.

*
Future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregate, under noncancelable operating leases with
initial or remaining terms of one year or more consisted of the following at December 31, 1997 (in thousands):

1098 .ottt ettt e $16,257
D09 oottt e e e, 15,409
2000 .t e e 14,963
2000 ot e e et 12,268
1. 7/ U 6,355
B 10T (=Y - POt 33,389

$98,641

At December 31, 1997, the Company had outstanding letters of credit of approximately $71.5 million.

Due to the long lead times required to produce purchased parts, SS/L has entered into various purchase
commitments with suppliers. These commitments aggregated $973.1 million at December 31, 1997.

Prior to its acquisition by Loral, Skynet sold several transponders under which title to specific
transponders was transferred to the customer upon the customer’s acceptance. Under the terms of the
contracts, Skynet continues to operate the satellites on which the transponders are located and provides a
warranty for a period of 10 to 14 years, generally the economic life of the satellite. Depending on the contract,
Skynet is required to replace transponders failing to meet operating specifications. All customers are entitled
to a refund equal to the reimbursement value, as defined, in the event there is no repair or replacement. The
reimbursement value is determined based on the original purchase price plus an interest factor from the time
the payment is received to acceptance of the transponder by the customer, reduced on a straight-line basis
over the warranty period. In case of satellite failure, the reimbursement value may be paid from proceeds
received from insurance policies.

In 1997, two in-orbit satellites built by SS/L experienced solar array circuit failures. One of the
customers has asserted that, in light of the failures and uncertainty as to further failures, it has not accepted
the satellite. Loral believes that the customer was contractually required to accept the satellite at completion
of in-orbit testing and that risk of loss has passed to the customer. In addition, another customer has requested
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12, Commitments and Contingencies — (continued)

that SS/L structure an arrangement whereby the satellite under construction would be sold to another
customer. Management believes that these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition or results of operations of Loral.

13. Related Party Transactions

In connection with contract performance, Loral provided services to and acquired services from
Lockheed Martin for the year ended December 31, 1997. A summary of such transactions and balances is as
follows (in thousands):

Year ended
December 31, 1997

Revenue from services sold .. ... ... i i $ 3,550

Cost of purchased SEIVICES . . ... .vvinre vt 78,160
Balance at year end:

RECEIVADIE oottt ittt et e e $ 80

Payable . ..ot 29,589

Net Payable . ..o vttt e e $29,509

Loral’s sales to, purchases from, and balances with the Alflance Partners are as follows (in thousands):

Year ended
December 31, 1997

Revenue from services SOId ... ..ot ii i it e $ 39,303
Cost of purchased SEIVICES . . ... o\vvvtint v 147,777
Balance at year end:
RECEIVADIE .. .ot o ittt e it $ 10,492
Payable .. ..ot . 81,716
Net payable . ... out it i e $ 71,224

14. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed based upon the weighted average npumber of shares of common
stock and the Series A Preferred Stock outstanding. Diluted  earnings per share excludes the assumed
conversion of the Series C Preferred Stock as the effect would have been antidilutive. Earnings per share for
the year ended March 31, 1996 is computed based on the number of shares issued to Old Loral’s sharcholders
in the Distribution.
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14. Earnings per Share — (continued)

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Year ended Nine months ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, March 31,
1997 1996 1996
{In thousands, except per share data)
Numerator:
Netincome (1088) ... ... i $ 40,004 $ 8,877 $(13,785)
Preferred stock dividends and accretion ............. 26,315)

Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share —
net income (loss) applicable to common

stockholders ............ e $ 13,689 $ 83877 $(13,785)
Denominator:
Weighted average shares:
Common stoCK ...t e 196,173 186,799 183,580
Series A Preferred Stock. . ...................... 45,897 42,198
Denominator for basic earnings per share . ........... 242,070 228,997 183,580
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee stock options . ................ ... ..., 1,521 399
Denominator for diluted earnings per share .......... e 243,591 229,396 183,580
Basic earnings pershare ...............ciiiiiiaian, $ 0.06 $ 004 $§ (0%
Diluted carnings pershare........................... $ 006 $ 004 $  (08)
15. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts)
Quarter ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
Year ended December 31, 1997
Revenues . ......oovieeinunnnnn. $340,353 $291,148 $371,118 $309,972
Income before income taxes and equity
in net loss of affiliates ............. 19,476 3,120 9,663 94,723
Net income (loss) .................. (406) (10,296) (3,962) 54,668
Preferred dividends and accretion ..... (2,947) (11,633) (11,73%5)
Net income (loss) applicable to
common sharehoiders ............. (406) (13,243) (15,595) 42,933
Eamnings per share — basic........... 0.00 {0.06) (0.06) 0.17
Earnings per share — diluted ......... 0.00 (0.06) (0.06) 0.17
Market price per share
High........ 0o .. 19t 17 21 244
Low o i4'% 13 14%6 19

* The results of operations for the quarter ended December 31, 1997, include a $79.6 million gain on the sale
of K&F stock.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

15. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited, in thousands, except per share amounts) — (continued)

Quarter ended
Jumne 30, September 30, December 31,

Nine months ended December 31, 1996

REVEIMUES « « v e e eevevv e $ 1,538 $ 1,837 $ 1,713
Income before income taxes and equity in net

Joss of affiliates .. ... oo oo 5,998 4,422 6,078
NEt INCOMIE « oot e v e area s 1,301 2,953 4,623
Earnings per share — basic............... 0.01 0.01 0.02
Earnings per share — diluted ............. 0.01 0.01 0.02
Market price per share

13 671 18': 16% 19%s

LOW & oeeeee e ean e 102 11 15Y,

F-28



EXHIBIT 5



Exhibit §

Estimated Deployment Schedule

Satellite Construction Commences
Satellite Construction Completed
Satellite Launch

Placement into Service

April 20(
October 2002
December 2002

February 2003
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EXHIBIT C

The applicant’s ultimate parent, Loral Space & Communications Ltd., is a Bermuda

company which is publicly traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE:LOR).



EXHIBIT D

In 1985, the Commission instituted the “freeze” to permit the Commission to develop a
sound orbital deployment plan that reflects established technical parameters and facilitates
successful technical coordination of authorized space stations.¥ The Freeze Order specifically
applies to applications requesting orbital positions which are east of 60 degrees West Longitude
and west of 30 degrees West Longitude in the 4, 6, 11, 12, or 14 GHz bands. Loral Orion,
pursuant to Section 1.3 of the Commission’s rules, 47 C.FR. § 1.3, hereby petitions for a waiver,
if necessary, of the Commission’s “Freeze Order” adopted May 31, 1985.%

Clearly, the Freeze Order should not apply to the Ku-band portion of the proposed
satellite system, because if this proposed satellite system is granted, Orion intends to relocate the
space station currently located at 37.5° W.L. Moreover, the Freeze Order should not apply to the
C-band portion of this application because this application merely seeks the addition C-Band
tfrequencies to the applicant’s existing authority at 37.5° W.L. Previously, the Commission did
not apply the Freeze Order to a similar application requesting, among other things, a change in
authorized frequencies at an already assigned orbital location.? To decide otherwise here would
pose an unnecessary burden on parties seeking to expand existing satellite services at locations

previously authorized. However, if the Commission decides to apply the Freeze Order to this

1/ Processing of Pending Applications for Space Stations to Provide International
Communications Service, FCC 85-296, 1985 FCC LEXIS 3202 (released June 6, 1985) (“Freeze
Order”).

2/ I at94

3/ In the Matter of PanAmSat for Modification of Conditional Authority to Construct a
Subregional Western Hemisphere Satellite System, FCC 86-257, 60 R.R 2d 398 (released May
21, 1986), as interpreted In re the Petition of Systematics General Corporation, DA 87-1186, 2
FCC Rced 18 (released Aug. 31, 1987), at 910.



-2-
application, grant of the requested waiver would be in the public interest for the same reasons that

grant of the underlying application is in the public interest, and no party would be prejudiced by

grant of the requested waiver.
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